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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 27" Annual General Meeting of VITP Private Limited will be held on
Wednesday, 25 September 2024 at 3:00 p.m. IST at the registered office of Company at Capella
Block, 5" Floor, Plot No.17, Software units Layout, Madhapur, Hyderabad — 81 to transact the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

Adoption of Financial Statements

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the company for the financial
year ended 31 March 2024 together with the report of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Regularization of appointment of Mr. Sumit Gera as Director.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification (s), the following resolution as an
ordinary resolution.

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable
provisions (including any modification or re-enactment thereof) if any, of the Companies Act, 2013,
and Article of Association of the Company, Mr. Sumit Gera (DIN #10189111) who was appointed as
an Additional Director on 12 August 2024, and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General
Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as Director of the Company.”

Regularization of appointment of Mr Ananth Vasanth Nayak as Director.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification (s), the following resolution as an
ordinary resolution.

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable
provisions (including any modification or re-enactment thereof) if any, of the Companies Act, 2013,
and Article of Association of the Company, Mr. Ananth Vasanth Nayak (DIN # 10584768) who was
appointed as an Additional Director on 12 August 2024, and who holds office up to the date of this
Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as Director of the Company.”

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
VITP Private Limited

Sd/-
Kotilingam Koppu
Place: 12 August 2024 Company Secretary
Date: Hyderabad (A-17903)
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NOTES:

1. AMEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A
PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE, ON A POLL, THEREAT INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE
PROXY NEED NOT BEA MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

2. AN INSTRUMENT OF PROXY TO BE EFFECTIVE SHALL BE LODGED AT THE REGISTERED
OFFICEOF THE COMPANY AT LEAST 48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE
MEETING.

3. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding Fifty (50) and holding in the
aggregate not more than 10% of the total paid-up share capital of the Company. In case a proxy is
proposed to be appointed by a Member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights,then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
member.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
VITP Private Limited

Sd/-
Kotilingam Koppu
Place: 12 August 2024 Company Secretary
Date: Hyderabad (A-17903)
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Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013.

ltem No 2 & 3:

Your Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Sumit Gera (DIN #10189111) and Mr. Ananth Vasanth
Nayak (DIN # 10584768) as Additional Directors of the Company w.e.f. 12 August 2024.Pursuant
to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Sumit Gera (DIN #10189111) and Mr. Ananth
Vasanth Nayak (DIN # 10584768) shall hold their respective office up to the date of this Annual
General Meeting.

The Company has received from Mr. Sumit Gera (DIN #10189111) and Mr. Ananth Vasanth Nayak
(DIN # 10584768) (i) Consent in writing to act as Director in Form DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of
Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and (ii) Intimation in Form DIR-
8 in terms of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, to give effect that
they are not disqualified under sub section (2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The resolution seeks the approval of members for the regularization of Mr. Sumit Gera (DIN
#10189111) and Mr. Ananth Vasanth Nayak (DIN # 10584768) as Directors of the Company
pursuant to Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
made thereunder.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial personnel and their relatives are interested or concerned
in the resolution except Mr. Sumit Gera and Mr. Ananth Vasanth Nayak.

Details of Mr. Sumit Gera and Mr. Ananth Vasanth Nayak who are being appointed as
Directors of the Company in this Annual General Meeting as per SS — 2 issue by Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

Name of the Director Mr. Sumit Gera

Mr. Ananth Vasanth Nayak

1. |Age 41 years 56 years

2. |Qualification Master's degree from the

BE (Mechanical) from National

National University of
Singapore (NUS), and a
Bachelor's degree from the
University of Delhi.

nstitute of Technology, Suratkal and
PGDM (Finance & Systems) Indian
Institute of Management, Kolkata

3. [Experience 17 years 27 years
4. |Details of Remuneration paid . .
. Nil Nil
and last drawn remuneration
5. |Date of First Appointment in 12 August 2024 12 August 2024
the Board
6. [Shareholding in the Company Nil Nil

7. |Relationship with other
Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel

Not related to any Director of the
Company

Not related to any Director of the
Company

8. |No. of Meetings attended
during the year

0

0
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9. |Directorship in other Loma Co-developers 2 Private |Chengalpattu Warehousing Parks
Companies Limited private Limited.
Magnifiek Fund Management |Chengalpattu Logistics Parks
Private Limited Private Limited.
Nalanda Shelter Private Limited [Minerva Veritas Data Centre Private
Pollax Solar Solutions Private |Limited
Limited Pollax Solar Solutions Private
Limited
Information Technology Park
Limited
10. |Membership / Chairmanship

in other committees

Nil

Nil
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BOARD’S REPORT
TO,
THE MEMBERS,
VITP PRIVATE LIMITED

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 27" Annual Report together with the Audited
Balance Sheet as on 31 March 2024 along with the reports of Auditors and Directors thereon.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY/PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

The financial results for the year ended 31 March 2024 and the corresponding figures for the
last year are as under:-

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. In Rs. In
Millions Millions

Revenue from Operations 3,075.07 2,231.14
Finance & Other Income 1,135.49 1,213.71
Profit/ Loss before Depreciation, Finance 3,518.37 2,956.18
Costs, Exceptional Items and Tax Expense
Less: Depreciation/ Amortisation/ Impairment 815.71 601.49
Profit/ Loss before Finance Costs, 2,702.66 2,354.69
Exceptional ltems and Tax Expense
Less: Finance Costs 1,527.80 1,632.13
Profit/ Loss before Exceptional Items and 1,174.86 722.56
Tax Expense
Add/ Less: Exceptional Items 185.00
Profit/ Loss before Tax Expense 1,359.86 722.56
Less: Tax Expense (Current & Deferred) 412.32 256.51
Profit/ Loss for the year (1) 947.54 466.05
Other Comprehensive Income/ Loss (2) 0.01 -
Total comprehensiveincome/ (loss) for the 947.53 466.05
year (1+2)
Add: Balance of Profit/(Loss) for earlier years 3,025.91 2,624.72
brought forward (Retained Earnings)
Less: Transfer from / (to) Debenture (55.39) (64.86)
Redemption Reserve
Less: Transfer to Reserves - -
Less: Dividend paid on Equity Shares - -
Less: Dividend paid on Preference Shares - -
Less: Dividend Distribution Tax - -
Balance of Retained Earnings carried 3,918.05 3,025.91
Forward at the end of the reporting period
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The Company was successful in taking proactive measures and marketing the space to
newclients in order to maintain healthy occupancy levels.

As reported above, the total revenue during the financial year ended on March 31, 2024,
stood at Rs. 3075.07 million as compared to Rs.2231.14 million during the previous year.

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY’S WORKING DURING THE YEAR/ STATE
OFCOMPANY’S AFFAIR

The company is primarily engaged in the business of developing, operating and
maintaininglndustrial Parks and incidental and associated activities. The company derives
revenue through the lease of the developed area to enterprises engaged in information
technology and information technology enabled services in Hyderabad and Pune.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There has been no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the
financial year ended 31 March 2024.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under Review, the paid-up share capital of the Company as on 31 March
2024 is Rs.105,89,82,400. The Company has not issued any equity shares nor granted
any Stock Options or Sweat Equity shares.

NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (NCDs)/ RUPEE DENOMINATED BONDS
(RDBS)

The Company has issued redeemable, unsecured and non-convertible debentures
(NCDs) of Rs. 1,000,000 each in two tranches, with the first tranche constituting of 2,368
NCDs on January 27, 2017, the second tranche constituting of 165 NCDs on February 10,
2017 aggregating to 2,533 NCD's of Rs. 2,533 million which carry an interest rate of
14.25% (from July 01, 2023 interest rate at 16% p.a.). As per the terms of agreement
interest for the period April 01, 2018 to March 31, 2022 shall be payable within a period of
2 years and 11 months from the date of accrual. Subsequently the interest shall be payable
within May 30th of the subsequent financial year. During the financial year 2021-22
interest payment terms were amended and interest payable upto March 2023 will be due
for payment on September 15, 2023 or any other mutually agreed date between the
Company and the Debenture Holder. All the subsequent interest payment shall be on "pay
when able" basis.

The term of each debenture shall be thirty years from the date of issue, however the
Company has an option to redeem the debentures in part or full, at any time after the third
anniversary but before expiry of the term of thirty years. At the time of redemption of the
debentures, the Company may, at its sole discretion, choose to redeem the debentures
with a premium as shall be fixed at that time.

During FY 2020-2021, the Company had issued 3,30,00,000 (Three Crore Thirty Lakhs)
Listed, Redeemable, Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of Rs. 100/-
(RupeesHundred Only) each, aggregating to INR 3,30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Three Hundred
and Thirty Crores Only) for 10 years. During FY 21/22 interest payment terms were
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amended and interest payable upto 31 March 2024will be due for payment on 15
September 2023 or any other mutually agreed dated between the Company and
Debenture holder. All the subsequent payment shall be “on pay when able” basis.

However, the company has repaid the interest amount till 31 March 2024on 4 May 2023.

The Company has appointed M/s. IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited as Debenture trustee
in respect of the above-listed debentures.

Unsecured Debentures (Non-convertible debentures): The Company has issued
10,00,000 redeemable, unsecured and non-convertible debentures (NCDs) of Rs. 100
each amounting to Rs. 100 million to Ascendas Property Fund (FDI) Pte Limited on
January 21, 2021 which carry an interest rate of 12% per annum issued on January 21,
2021 . As per the terms of the agreement the Company shall pay interest based on
availability of funds and as decided by Board of Directors of the Company. During the
financial year 2021-22 interest payment terms were amended and interest payable upto
March 2023 will be due for payment on September 15, 2023 or any other mutually agreed
date between the Company and the Debenture Holder. All the subsequent interest
payment shall be on "pay when able" basis.

The term of each debenture shall be ten years from the date of issue with an option of
prepayment. Pursuant to the Board approval dated April 27, 2023, the debentures were
fully redeemed on May 03, 2023.

Unsecured Debentures (Non-convertible debentures): The Company has issued
25,00,000 redeemable, unsecured and non-convertible debentures (NCDs) of Rs. 100
each amounting to Rs. 250 million to Ascendas Property Fund (FDI) Pte Limited on April
26, 2022, which carry an interest rate of 12% per annum. As per the terms of the
agreement the Company shall pay interest based on availability of funds and as decided
by Board of Directors of the Company.

Redemption:

The Company redeemed 2,368 and 165 NCDs on 27 June 2023 and repaid
outstanding non-convertible debentures along with interest.

Unsecured unlisted redeemable offshore rupee denominated bonds: On June 22,
2023, the Company issued 26,143,377 fully paid-up, redeemable, interest bearing,
unsecured, offshore Rupee Denominated Bonds (“RDBs”) amounting to Rs. 2,614.33
Million to its holding Company — “Ascendas Property Fund (India) Pte Limited” via private
placement . The RDBs have a face value of Rs. 100 each and carry an interest rate of
11.67% (G-sec 7.17% + 450 basis points), payable on a half yearly basis (i.e., 30
September and 31 March of every year). The term of these RDBs is 30 years from the
date of first disbursement. (June 20, 2023)

During the year the Company has amended the terms of Interest repayment and as per
the revised terms, the interest payment due until September 30, 2023, and subsequent
payments shall be payable within a period of 3 years from the due date.

LISTING

Some of your company’s Non-Convertible Debentures are listed on BSE Limited. The
Listing fees to the Stock Exchanges for the year 2024-2025 have been paid.
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The Company has not received any grievances from the investors.

The company redeemed 2,368 and 165 NCDs on 27 June 2023. At present,
2,368 and 165 NCDs have been redeemed and is delisted.

During the year under review, the company has neither invited nor accepted any deposits
falling under the purview of Section 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

Your Directors have not recommended any dividend for Financial Year 2023-2024.

No amount was transferred to reserves during the financial year ended 31 March 2024.

7. DEPOSITS
8. DIVIDEND

9. RESERVES
10. MEETINGS

The meetings of the Board are scheduled at regular intervals to decide and discuss on
business performance, policies, strategies and other matters of significance. The

schedule for the meetings was circulated in advance, to ensure proper planning and
effective participation in meetings. In certain exigencies, decisions of the Board were
also accorded through circulation.

The details of Board Meetings convened during FY 2023-2024 are tabulated below:-

Meetings No. of Meetings held Date of the Meetings

Board Meetings 5 19 May 2023, 14 July 2023,
14 August 2023,10 November 2023
,13 February 2024

Audit Committee 5 19 May 2023, 14 July 2023,

Meeting 14 August 2023,10 November 2023
,13 February 2024

Stakeholder 1 13 February 2024

Relationship

Committee

CSR Committee 1 13 February 2024

Meeting

Extra-Ordinary 2 31 May 2023 & 29 September 2023

General Meeting

Annual General 1 22 September 2023

Meeting
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The frequency of the Board Meetings was in accordance with the requirement under
Companies Act, 2013.

Independent Directors were appointed on 31 March 2023 and re-appointed at the Extra-
Ordinary General Meeting held on 29 May 2024.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Board consists of total 6 directors, of which 2 are independent and 4 are non-
executive. At present,the Directors and Key ManagerialPersonnel of your Company
are:

NAME OF DIRECTOR/ KMP CATEGORY

Mr. Sanjeev Dasgupta Chairman & Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ying Soon Cheah Non-Executive Director

Mr. Nagabhushanam Gauri Shankar Non-Executive Director

Mr. Rohith Bhandary Non-Executive Director (w.e.f. 30 March
2023)

Mr. Venkata Madana Gopal Divvela Independent Director (w.e.f. 31 March 2023)

Ms. Srilatha Cherukuri Women Independent Director (w.e.f. 31
March 2023)

Mr. Kotilingam Koppu Company Secretary

Appointment & Regularization: -

During the year under review, your Board appointed :-

>

>

12.

13.

14.

Mr Venkata Madana Gopal Divvela was re-appointment for second term of 5 years at
the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 29 May 2024.

Ms. Srilatha Cherukuri was re-appointment for a second term of 5 years at the Extra-
Ordinary General Meeting held on 29 May 2024.

BOARD EVALUATION

The performance evaluation for FY2023-2024 was carried out at the NRC and Board
Meeting held on 29 May 2024.

CREDIT RATING

During the year under review, ICRA-the rating agency reaffirmed the company
rating to BBB (stable) as under:

Instrument Type Amount Rating
Outstanding
(Rs. in Crores)

NCD Long term 330 ICRA BBB
(Stable)

MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY:

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements
relate on the date of this report.

The Company redeemed 2,368 and 165 Listed NCDs on 27 June 2023 and repaid
outstanding non-convertible debentures along with interest.
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The Company has also issued 2,61,43,377 unsecured and redeemable offshore rupee
denominated bonds of face value of Rs. 100 (Rupees one hundred only) each aggregating
for an amount of Rs.261,43,37,700/- on 29 May 2023.

WEB ADDRESS IF ANY, WHERE ANNUAL RETURN REFERRED TO IN SUB
SECTION (3) OF SECTION 92 PLACED

The web address where Annual Return as referred to in Section 92(3) of the Companies
Act, 2013 would be available after filling the same with Registrar of Companies is
https://ir.a-itrust.com/vitp.html.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In accordance with the clause (c ) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Directors of your Company hereby state that:-

in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures

- such accounting policies were selected and applied them consistently and made
judgmentsand estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of
the profit and loss ofthe company for that period;

- proper and sufficient care was taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
recordsin accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of
the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

- the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.
- The internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively

- proper systems were devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicablelaws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE:

The Company has formed a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as per Section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules made there under. The details of
CSR spending are enclosed in CSR Annexure [ Annexure A. The CSR policy has been
uploaded in the Company’s website with the following link https://ir.a-itrust.com/vitp.html

Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder
(including statutory modifications or re-enactment(s) or amendments in the applicable rules
thereof for the time being in force as on date of this Report), the Members of the CSR
Committee

at present

1. Mr. Sanjeev Dasgupta, Committee Chairman

2. Mr. Ying Soon Cheah, Committee Member (w.e.f. 17 February 2022)

3. Ms. Srilatha Cherukuri, Committee Member (w.e.f. 31 March 2023)
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STATUTORY AUDITORS

Your Shareholders approved the appointment of M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells,
Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the first term of 5 years
i. e. from the conclusion of 25th AGM to the conclusion of 30th AGM i.e. from FY 2022/23
to FY 2026/27.

The Auditors' Report does not contain any qualification. Notes to Accounts and Auditors'
remarks in their report are self-explanatory and do not call for any future comments.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

The Board of Directors appointed M/s. DSMR & Associates, Company Secretary
(CP No. 4239) as Secretarial Auditor to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for
Financial Year 2023-2024.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

In terms of the provisions of section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and with rule 5(2)
and 5 (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014,none of the employee draws remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the
said rules.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE OUTGO:

The Company is engaged in the business of development, and operation of IT Parks. There
are no particulars to be disclosed under the provisions of Section 134 (3) read with the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of “Conservation of Energy & Technology
Absorption etc.

There were no foreign exchange earnings during the year under review while the foreign
exchange outflow is separately covered in the notes on accounts forming part of the audited
financial statement.

DETAILS OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Company has adequate internal control systems commensurate with the size, scale
and complexity of its operations.

With an aim to monitor and control day-to-day operations of the Company, the Company
has set up internal control systems for regular tracking and reporting. The Company has
adequate material internal financial controls and such internal financial controls were
operating effectively. The auditors of your company have endorsed the same view in their
report.

In order to further strengthen the system of Internal Control and to provide the Board of
Directors with an ability to oversee internal controls, Internal Financial Control (IFC) system
was put in place in accordance with the requirements of Section 134(5) of Companies Act
2013. Internal Control systems were implemented, considering the framework suggested
in Guidance Note on ‘Audit of Internal Financial Controls over the Financial Reporting’
issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, to address the operational and
financial risk.
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23. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

The Company has not given any loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of
section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The details of the investments made by the company are given in the notes to the financial
statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF ACCOUNTS:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS), as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR
ADVERSE REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS IN THEIR REPORT

Statutory Auditors:

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in
their report.

Secretarial Auditor:

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse
remark. The Secretarial Audit Report given by Secretarial Auditors is annexed with the
report as Annexure — B.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review, your Company had complied with all the applicable
SecretarialStandards (SS-1 & SS-2).

CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS INITIATED UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (IBC)

Disclosures pertaining to Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process initiated under The
Insolvency and bankruptcy Code, 2016 IBC), are not required to be made for your
Companyduring the year under review.

FRAUDS REPORTED BY THE AUDITORS
No fraud was reported by the Auditors in their reports during the year under review.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS:

During the year no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunalsimpacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

Pursuant to section 134 (3) (n) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has developed
a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key business
objectives. At present the company has not identified any element of risk which may
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threatenthe existence of the company.

CONSTITUTION OF VARIOUS COMMITTEES / ADOPTION OF POLICIES

Pursuant to the Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2015-16/013 issued by SEBI with
regard to certain provisions of Chapter IV of SEBI ((Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations) 2021 shall apply to a listed entity that has
listed its non-convertible debt securities and has an outstanding value of listed non-
convertible debt securities of Rupees Five Hundred Crore.

SEBI introduced the concept of High Value Debt Listed Entity (HVDLE) by amending SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (LODR) vide
notification dated September 07, 2022.

The high value debt listed entity (HVDLE) which had listed its non-convertible debt
securities on a recognised stock exchange and had an outstanding principal value of listed
non-convertible debt securities of Rs. 500 Crore and above as on 31 March 2021 were
required to constitute various Committees, adopt various policies and codes under Listing
Regulations.

Since the value of company’s listed non-convertible debt securities exceed the
threshold limit of Rupees Five Hundred Crore during the financial year 2020 — 2021,
the company was required to comply with the provisions of Regulation 16 to
Regulation 27 of Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations) 2021.

Audit Committee:-

Pursuant to Regulation 18 (1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015, the Company has constituted an Audit Committee on 31 March 2023
and the current composition of the Committee is as under:

1) Mr. Sanjeev Dasgupta, Non-Executive Director

2) Mr. DVM Gopal, Independent Director

3) Ms. Srilatha Cherukuri, Independent Director & Chairperson

The roles and responsibilities of Audit Committee is in accordance with the terms of reference/
Audit Committee Charter

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

Pursuant to Regulation 19 (1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015, the Company has constituted Nomination & Remuneration Committee
on 31 March 2023 and the current composition of the Committee is as under:

1) Mr. Sanjeev Dasgupta, Non-Executive Director

2) Mr. Venkata Madana Gopal Divvelal, Independent Director & Chairman

3) Ms. Srilatha Cherukuri, Independent Director

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Pursuant to the Regulation 20 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), 2015, the Company has constituted a Stakeholders Relationship
Committee on 31 March 2023 to specifically look into various aspect of interest of the
stakeholders, debenture holders and other security holders. The current compaosition of the
Committee effective is as under:

1) Mr. Sanjeev Dasgupta, Non-Executive Director & Chairman
2) Mr. Cheah Ying Soon, Non-Executive Director
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3) Mr. Venkata Madana Gopal Divvelal, Independent Director

Risk Management Committee:-

Pursuant to Regulation 21 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015, the Company has constituted Risk Management Committee on 31
March 2023 and the current composition of the Committee is as under:

1) Mr. Sanjeev Dasgupta, Non-Executive Director & Chairman
2) Mr. Cheah Ying Soon, Non-Executive Director
3) Ms. Srilatha Cherukuri, Independent Director

In compliance with SEBI (Listing Obligation Disclosure Requirement) Regulations,
2015, the company has also adopted various policies under Listing Regulations:-

» Nomination & Remuneration Policy

Policy on diversity of Board of Directors
Familiarization programme for Independent Directors
Policy for preservation of documents

YV V V V

Code of Conduct for Board & Senior management

The policies are put on the Company’s website and can be accessed on the Company’s
website https://ir.a-itrust.com/vitp.html

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
The Company does not have any subsidiaries as on 31 March 2024
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s
length basis and were in the ordinary course of the business.

There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the company with
Promoters, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have
potential conflict with interest of the company at large.

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section
188(1), as prescribed in Form AOC - 2 of the rules prescribed under Chapter IX relating
to Accounts of Companies under the Companies Act, 2013, is appended as Annexure —
C.

DISCLOSURE AS PER SEXUAL HARRASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has a policy at
group level on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in
line with the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder.

Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up at group level to redress complaints
on sexual harassment.

During the year under review, the Company has not received any complaints on sexual
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harassment.
35. COST AUDIT RECORDS

The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under the
provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under for
the services rendered by the Company.

36. WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Board has framed a Whistle-Blower Policy to conduct its business affairs in a fair
andtransparent manner by adopting highest standards of professionalism.

The policy guides the Directors, Employees and other stakeholders to report genuine
concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Code of
Conduct. The policy has been uploaded in the Company’s website with the following link:
https://ir.a-itrust.com/vitp.html

37. THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT
THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING
LOAN FROM THE BANKS:

As per Clause xii read with Rule 8(5) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, no loans
from the banks/ Financial Institutions were under One Time Settlement during the year
under review.

Hence, the difference between amount of Valuation done at the time of Settlement and
Valuation done at the time of taking loans from the banks did not arise.

38. BENEFICIAL INTEREST

The management had designated Mr Kotilingam Koppu , Company Secretary of the
Company to furnish information with respect to beneficial interest, if any to Registrar of
Companies.

39. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation of the assistance and support
rendered by State and Central Government Authorities, the Reserve Bank of India, the
Company’s bankers, and the Joint Venture Partners, Viz.,

The Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation of the sincere efforts of the
employees of the Company in the continuous development of The International Tech Park,

Hyderabad.
By Order of the Board
For VITP Private Limited
Sd/- Sd/-
Sanjeev Dasgupta Ying Soon Cheah
Director Director
Place: Singapore (DIN:00090701) (DIN:09406160)

Date : 12 August 2024
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CSR ANNEXURE - A
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FORMING PART OF THE BOARD’S REPORT FOR FY 2022/23
1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

The Company may undertake various CSR projects, programs and activities from time to time and may also contribute towards any existing or ongoing
CSR projects, programs and activities.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

SI.No. | Name of Director Designation /Nature of Directorship

1 Sanjeev Dasgupta, Committee Chairman

2 Mr. Ying Soon Cheah Committee Member (effective from 17 February 2022)
3 Ms. Srilatha Cherukuri Committee Member (effective from 31 March 2023)

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the
company - https://ir.a-itrust.com/vitp.html

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if
applicable. - Not applicable.

5. Details of the amount available for set in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any — Not applicable

6.(a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135.- Rs 66,51,57,560/-

7 (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135.- Rs 1,33,03,151/-
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years. -
(c) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any.- Nil

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)].- Rs 1,33,03,151/-
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8 (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Spent for the

Financial Year. Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified under

(in Rs.) Unspent CSR Account as per sub Schedule VIl as per second proviso to sub-section (5)
section of section 135.
(6) of section 135.
Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer
- Rs.1,33,03,151/ 21 February 2024 NIL NIL NIL
& 11 March 2024

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Not Applicable.

@ @ ® ) ®) ©6) @ ®) ©) (10) an
Sl. Name of Iltem from |Local |Location of the |Project |JAmount Amount Amount Mode of [Mode of
No. [the Project. [the list of area [project. duratio [allocated for |spentin the [transferred to Implemen(implementation -
activities in  [(Yes/N n. the project |Current Unspent CSR  ftation - [Through
Schedule VII |0). (in Rs.). financial Account for the |Direct Implementing Agency
to the Act. Year (in Rs.).[project as per  [(Yes/N
Section135(6) (info).
Rs.).
CSR
State. [District. Name |Registration
number.
1 Construction |Clause (ii)of |Yes [Telang[Hydera |3 yrs 66,53,151 Nil 66,53,151 No |CapitaLan |[CSR000009
of schedule VII ana |bad d Hopes 96
Government [of the Foundation
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School at Companies (formerly
Manikonda |Act, 2013. Ascendas

Gives
Foundation
)

2. Construction |Clause (ii)of |No 3 yrs 66,50,000 Nil 66,50,000 No |CapitaLan |[CSR0O00009
of Block 2 |schedule VI d Hopes 96
Building at |of the Foundation

: (formerly
Hope School |[Companies Ascendas
in Pune Act, 2013. .
Gives
Foundation
)
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financialyear:Not applicable
1) 2) 3 (4) (©)] (6) (1) (8)
Sl. Name of the  [item from the |Local area [Location of the project. Amount Mode of Mode of implementation - Through
No. Project list of activities |(Yes/ No). spent for the implementation implementing agency.
in schedule VI project -
to the Act. State. District. (in Rs.). Direct (Yes/No) Name. CSR .
registration
number.
TOTAL

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads.-Nil

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable.-NA
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Sl. Particular Amount
No. (in Rs.)
1) 2) (3)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year
(i) | Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)]
(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous Financial
Years, if any
(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)]
9(a). Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years: -
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Sl. Preceding Amount Balance Amount Amount transferred to | Amount Deficiency,
No Financial transferred to Amount in Spentin a remaining to be if
Year(s) Unspent CSR Unspent the Fund as specified spentin any
Account CSR Financial under succeeding
under Account Year (in Schedule VIl as per Financial Years
subsection under subsection Rs) second proviso to (in Rs)
(6) of (6) of subsection
section 135 section 135 (5) of section 135,
(in Rs.) (in Rs.) if any
Amount Date of
(in Rs) Transfer
1 FY 2022-23 - NIL NIL NIL
2 FY 2021-22 - NIL NIL NIL
3 FY-2020-21 45,63,600 NIL Nil NIL

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): Not Applicable
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1) 2 3) 4) ) (6) ) (8) 9)
Sl. Project[Name of |Financial Project Total Amount Cumulative Status of the
No. ID. the Year in [duration Jamount spent on the amount spent [project-
Project which allocated project in at the end of [Completed

the for the the reporting reporting Ongoing

project was project Financial Year Financial

commenced. (in Rs.) (in Rs) Year. (in Rs.

10. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: NO
O -

Yes
If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

Sl. Short particulars of the Pincode of the Date of creation Amount of Details of entity/ Authority/
No. property or asset(s) [including | property CSR beneficiary of the registered owner
complete address and or asset(s) amount
location of the property] spent
1 2 3 4 5 6
CSR Name Registered
Registration address
Number, if
applicable

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal Office/Municipal Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to
be specified and also the area of the immovable property as well as boundaries)
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11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per subsection (5) of section 135.- NA

On Behalf of the Board of Director of VITP Private Limited

[Person specified under clause (d) of sub-section (1)
of section 380]
(Wherever applicable).”

Ying Soon Cheah
Director Sanjeev Dasgupta
Chairman CSR Committee

Date: 12 August 2024
Place: Singapore
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Annexure-B
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2024

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

VITP Private Limited

Capella Block, 5" Floor

Plot No. 17, Software Unit Layout,
Madhapur, Hyderabad — 500081

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by VITP PRIVATE LIMITED [CIN:
U72200TG1997PTC026801] (hereinafter referred to as the Company).

Secretarial audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company as stated
above, during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31%t March, 2024 complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31% March 2024 according to the
provisions of:

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under

However, there has been delay in filing E- Form DIR-12 relating to Regularization of Mr. Rohith
Bhandary as a Director due to Ministry of Corporate Affairs website issue.

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under in
respect to the listed debt securities.

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed there under to the extent
of issue of Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures

. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment;
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v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008 read with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [to the extent applicable for Companies which has its
Debt Securities listed on the exchanges]

Pursuant to the Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2015-16/013 issued by SEBI with
regard to certain provisions of Chapter IV of SEBI ((Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations) 2021 shall apply to a listed entity that
has listed its non-convertible debt securities and has an outstanding value of listed non-
convertible debt securities of Rupees Five Hundred Crore and above w.e.f 07.09.2021.

Since the value of company’s listed non-convertible debt securities exceed the threshold limit
of Rupees Five Hundred Crore during the financial year 2020 — 2021 it is required to ensure the
necessary compliance.

However, the company has redeemed 2368 & 165 NCDs on 27 June 2023 after obtaining the
consent of the debenture holder Ascendas Property Fund (FDI) Pte Ltd. ("Debenture Holder"),
debenture trustee viz IDBI Trusteeship Services limited & members in the Extra Ordinary
General Meeting held on 315 May 2023, consequent to which the debt had reduced to Rs.330
Crores.

Accordingly, the company shall comply with the provisions of Regulation 16 to Regulation 27 of
Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment)
Regulations) 2021 on a ‘Comply or Explain’ basis until March 31, 2025 and on a mandatory
basis thereafter.

However, the company choose to comply with some of the provisions as of now which are listed
as below:

Regulation | Text Comply or | Compliance from 1%t April
Explain 2024
17 Composition of Board of | Complied Yes
Directors The performance

evaluation of
the Directors.
and committees
for the financial

year 2023 -
2024 was done
on 28° May,
2024
17A Maximum number  of | Complied Yes
directorships
18 Audit Committee Complied Yes
19 Nomination and | Complied Yes
remuneration committee
20 Stakeholders Relationship | Complied Yes
Committee

21 Risk Management | Complied Yes, however
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Committee the company
did not conduct
any committee
meetings during
the FY 2023 -
2024 which is
Comply or
explain basis till
31° March,
2025
22 Vigil mechanism Complied Yes
23 Related Party Complied Yes
Transactions
24 Corporate Governance | NA Company does not have any
requirements with respect Subsidiary till 31 March 2024.
to subsidiary of listed entity
24A Secretarial Audit Complied Yes
24A Secretarial Compliance | Complied Yes
Report
25 Obligations with Complied Yes
respect to
independent directors
26 Obligations with Complied Yes
respect to employees
including senior
management, key
managerial persons,
directors and
promoters
27 Other Corporate Complied Yes
Governance
Requirements

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client with regard to its Equity
Shares and Debentures.

Since the Company’s Equity Shares are not listed on any Stock Exchange, the following
regulations, which are applicable to companies whose Equity Shares are listed, does not apply to
the Company:

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefit Schemes)
Regulations, 2014;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998



INTERNATIONAL

TECH PARK

HYDERABAD, HITEC CITY

An Ascendas IT Park
vi. | further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on the

examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test -check basis the
Company has complied with the following specific law to the extent applicable to the Company:

Airport Authority Act, 1994

Forest Conservation Act, 1980

Indian Forest Act, 1947

Transfer of Property Act, 1882

Registration Act, 1908

Building and Other Construction Workers (Regulation of Employment and Conditions of
Services) Act, 1996

g. Building and Other Construction Workers (Welfare Cess) Act, 1996

~Po0oTy

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(@ Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. Since only the
Secretarial standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and Secretarial Standards
on General Meetings (SS-2) have been notified and effective from 1\July, 2015, the Company
has complied with the said Standards.

(i) The Company has also entered into Listing Agreement with the BSE Limited for listing of its
debt securities. The Company has complied with all the provisions of the listing agreement and
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 relating to Debt
Regulations and would comply with the other regulations.

| further report that since the company “VITP PRIVATE LIMITED” being a private limited company,
there is no such requirement as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 to appoint independent
directors / Whole time director / Managing director / Directors retiring by rotation and the board of the
Company has been duly constituted with proper balance of Non-Executive Directors.

The Company has a Company Secretary (hereinafter referred to as KMP) as envisaged under the
provisions of Section 203 the Companies Act, 2013.

| further report that the compliance by the company with the applicable financial laws such as direct
and indirect tax laws and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts has not been
reviewed in this audit since the same has been subject to review by Statutory financial auditor and
other designated professionals.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings that were sent in accordance
with the statutory requirement. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were being sent at least seven
days in advance. A system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on
the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Maijority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded
as part of the minutes.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there
under.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations and guidelines.
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| further report that, during the audit period there were no other specific events / actions in pursuance
of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc. having a major bearing on the
Company’s affairs.

e The company has adopted a new set of Articles of Association in substitution of the existing Articles
of Association of the company in order to reflect the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 after obtaining
the approval of members in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 29" day of September, 2023.

e It was proposed to avail Extra Commercial Borrowings by the way of issue of 2,61,43,377 unsecured
and redeemable offshore Rupee denominated Bonds of face value of Rs.100 aggregating to an
amount of (Rupees two hundred and sixty-one crores forty-three lakhs thirty-seven thousand seven
hundred only) ("RDBs") under a Deed Constituting Unsecured Redeemable Offshore Rupee
Denominated Bonds RDB Deed") and a Subscription Agreement on a private placement basis.

For DSMR & Associates
Company Secretaries
Place: Hyderabad
Date: 7 August 2024

D S M Ram
C. P. No. 4239
Proprietor
UDIN:
Peer Review Certificate No. 1252/2021

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an
integral part of this report.
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Annexure ‘A’

To,

The Members,

VITP Private Limited

Capella Block, 5" Floor

Plot No. 17, STPI Layout,
Madhapur, Hyderabad — 500081

Management’s responsibility:

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

Auditor’s Responsibility:

2. | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurances
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices,
we followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. Wherever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happenings of events etc.

4.  The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test
basis.

Disclaimer:

5. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

6. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of
the Company and compliance with the applicable accounting standards since the same has been subject
to review by the Statutory Auditors.

For DSMR & Associates
Company Secretaries
Place: Hyderabad
Date: 7 August 2024

D S M Ram
C. P. No. 4239
Proprietor
UDIN No:

Peer Review Certificate No. 1252/2021
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Annexure-C

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

Name(s) Nature of Duration of | Salient terms |Justification | Amount Date(s) of | Date on
of the contracts/ the of the for entering | paid as approval | Which the
related arrangement | contracts/ | contracts or |into such advances | by the special
party & s/ arrangeme | arrangement |contracts or |, if any Board \rl\(lasglutlon
Nature of | transactions | nts sor arrangeme passed in
relationshi /transaction | transactions |nts or General
p including the |transaction meeting as
value, ifany |s’ required
under first
proviso
to section
188
NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis:
Name(s) of the Nature of Duration | Salient terms of  |Justification | Amount Date(s) of
related party & contracts/ of the the contracts or  |for entering paid as approval by
Nature of arrangement | contract | arrangements or |into such advances, if | the Board
relationship s/ s/ transactions contracts or | any
transactions | arrange | including the arrangement
ments value, if any s or
/transacti transactions’
ons
CapitaLand Property 10 Years Availing of NIL NIL August 7,
Services (India) | Management w.e.f. General 2017
Private Limited Agreement | August 1, Management,
(CSIPL) formerly 2017 Property
(Ascendas Management,
Services (India) Lease
Private Limited Management,
ASIPL) Marketing etc.
(transaction value
as mentioned in
the financials of
the company).
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3. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not in the ordinary course of

business:
Name(s) Nature of Duration of | Salient terms |Justification | Amount Date(s) of | Date on
of the contracts/ the of the for entering | paid as approval | which the
related arrangement | contracts/ | contracts or |into such advances | by the special
party & s/ arrangeme | arrangement |contracts or | , if any Board resolution
Nature of | transactions | nts sor arrangeme was
relationshi /transaction | transactions |nts or passed in
p S including the [transaction General
value, ifany |s’ meeting as
required
under first
proviso
to section
188
NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
By Order of the Board
For VITP Private Limited
Sd/- Sd/-

Place: Singapore

Date : 12 August 2024

Sanjeev Dasgupta
Director
(DIN:00090701)

Ying Soon Cheah
Director

(DIN:09406160)



Charlores Accauntanes
Presliye Trode Tower, Lovel 19

= A, Palace Rooad, High Sroards
De‘o‘tte Bengalurg - B&0 001

Karmataka, Ind:a

HﬁSkiﬂS & SE‘IIS Telr +%1 840 B I1ER S04

Fax: +91 HO S1HH ALl

IKDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of VITP Private Limitad
Report on the Audit of the Financla!l Statements

Opinlon

We have audited the accompanying financhal staternents of VITP Frivate Limited {"the Company™},
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
{including Cthey Comprehensive [ncome), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes
i Equlty for the year ended on that date, and notes to the fnarclal statements, induding a
sumreary of material accounting policies and other explanatory inflarmation,

In our opinion and ko the best of our information and aceording to the explanations given to us, the
aforesald financial statements give the information required by the Corepanles Ack, 2013 (Mtha Act™)
In the mreannaer 5o required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under sechion 123 of the Ack, "Tnd A2™) and ether accountling principles
generglly accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its

profil, totat comprehensive Income, its cash fows and the changes in eguily for the year ended an
that date. ' '

Basis for Dpinion

We conducked sur audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on AldiEng
("SAs") specified under sectlon 143104 of the Ack. Qur responsfhilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsiblitty for the Audit of the Finaneial Statements section of
our repart. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {"ICAL"Y together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financiat statements under the provistons of the Act and the Rules
made theraunder, and we have fulfilled gur other ethlcal responsibllities in accordance with these
requlretnents and the ICAT's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audlt evidence obtained by us is
suffickent and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ananclal statements.

Key buadit Matters

Key audit matbers are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
In our audlt of the financial statements of the cutrent peried. These matlers were addrassed in the
conlexl of our audit of the finoncial statements as a whole, and in formlng our opinlon therean, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matiers. We have determined the matters described
below ko be the key awdlt makters to be cormmunicated in aur report.

Sr, | Key Audit Matter | Auditor's Rasponse
1 Evaluation of Tax Principat Audit Procedures performed:

Litlgatlonsfpositions y . - .
_ Refer note 20 (¢} of s Assessed the design, Implersentation and operaking effectiveness of

. . masagement's key internal conbrols over evaluation of potential Impact of
the financial \ . . A o :
litigatlorns inclading controls over recognition of provisions relating to
staterments . ; )
taxation and disclosures arnund contlregent adillby.

«  Obtained list of direct and indirect tax lltgatlons as ak March 21, 2024
fram the managemoeont.

i+ e together with our tax specialists, evatuatod Management's assessment
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Sr. | Key Audit Matter | Auditor's Response
MNo.

Iwluding  the  autcome of previous litigations and  other
: pronouncements on simiilar makters ete.

of contingent liabilitics in the financial statements.

judielal

«  We have assessed the adeguacy of the Company’s disclosures in respect

Infarmation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

»  The Company's Board of Directers s respansible for the other information. The other Informaticon
comprises the information included In the Director's report, but decs not include the financdial
statements and cur auditor’s report thereon,

»  Our apinion on the financial stakements does not cover the other Information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusien thereon,

» In connaction with our audit of the financial slakements, our responsibifity is to read the other
Information and, in doing so, consider whether the other infarraation s materlatly incensistont
with Ehe financial statermaenks ar our knowledge obtaimed duving the course of our audit or
otherwise appoars to e materially misstated,

+« If basad on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this okher information, we are required £o report that fact. We have nothing o report in this
regard,

Responsibllitles of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statemants

The Company's Board of Direckors is responsible for the makters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financiat sktatements that give 2 trie and fair vicw of
the financial position, flnanclat performance including other comprehensive Income, cash flows and
changes in equlty of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
Endla, Including IND AS specifled under soction 133 of the Act. This responsibility alse Includes
rmaintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance  with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting {rauds  and  ather
irreguarities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implomentation and maintenance of
adeguate inkernal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and prasentation of the flranclal
statemants that give a true and fair view and are free from materlal misstatement, whether due to
frawd o error,

In preparing the flnanclal statements, managemont and Board of Directors is responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a golng concern, disclosing, as applicable, makters
related to going concorn and using Ehe going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intend to liquidate the Company or Lo cease operations, o has no realistic alternative but to
do s0.

The Company's Board of Directors are also responsible for oversecing the Company’s financial
reporbing process.

Pape 2 of 16




Deloitte
Haskins & Sells

Auditor's Respansihility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectlves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from materlal misstatemant, whether due to fraed ar error, and to Issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinton. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, bot is not a
guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with S4s wilb always detect a material
misstatement when |t exlsts. Misstatements can arise from fravd or error and are considered
material if, individualiy or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to Infuence the
ECOnammic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exerclse professional judgment and maintaln
professlonal skeptlcism throughout the audit. We alsg:

v Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Anancial statements, whather due
to fraud or error, design and perform audi procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that s sufflcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our oplnlon. The risk of
niok detacting a material misstakement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resufting from
arrar, as fraud may invalve collusian, forgery, Intentionat omibsslans, milsrepresentations, or the
override of internal contral,

«  Obtain an understanding of internal financlal conkrols relevant to the audi€ in order ta design
audlt procedures that are appropriate in the circurmstances, Under sectlon 143(3Ki) of the Act,
we are also responsihle for expressing our opinien on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controfs.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting pallcies used and the reasonabloness of accounling
estimates and relakted disclosures made by the management,

«  Conclude an the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern Basts of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materlal uncertalnty exists refated to
events or conditions that may cast significant deubt on the Company's ability to conlinue as a
foing concern. If we conclude that a material uncerkalnty exlsts, we are requited to draw
attenlion in our auditor's repert to the refated disclosures in the flnanclal stakements or, iF such
disclosures are inadequate, to moedlfy our opinfen. Qur conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtatned up to the date of our audibor's report. However, future events or conditions
may rasse the Company to cease fo confinue as 2 going concern.

= Ewvaluate the overol presentation, skructure and content of the financlal statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlylog transactions and
avenks in a manner that achieves fair presentaklon,

Materialley is the magnltude af misstatements in the financial statements that, Individually or in
aggregake, makes it probable thak the economle decislons of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
fimancial skatermnents may be influenced, We consider quankitative materlstity and qualitatlve factars
in {i] planning the scope of our audie worke and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i} o
evaluaba the effect of any identified misstatements Ik the fnanclal statements,

We communicate with thase charged with governance regarding, amoeng other matters, the ptanned

scape and timing of the audit and slgnifleant audit findings, incleding any significant deficiendes In
Internal flnanclal controks that we identify during our audit,

We also provide hose charged with governance with a statement thal we have coraplied with
relevant ethical reguirerpents regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
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relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear an cur independence, and
whers applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communlcated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current perlod and are
thergfore the key audlt matters. We describe these matters In our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter ar when, in extramely rare circumstances,
we determine that @ matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasenably be expected to eubwelgh the pubdic interest benefles of
such commurnication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Seckion 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit wo repoert that:

)

b}

)

d}

el

f)

a}

h)

We have sought and sbtaled all the Information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpeses of our audit.

I our opinion, proper books of account as reguired by law have been kept by the Company
so far as ik appears from our examination of those books, except thak the back-up of books
of accounl malnkalnad in electronic mode were not malntalned on servers physically located
in India on a daily basls upta August 11, 2023 and nok compiying with the requirement of
audit trail as skaked in i fvid below {(Refer Mote 41 to the financial statemants},

The Batance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Leoss including Other Comprehansive
Income, the Cash Flow Staterment and Staternent of Changes in Equity deallt with by this
Repart are Ik agreement with the relevant books of accound.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the [nd AS specifled undar
Secllan 133 of the Act,

Or the basis of the written representations recetved from the directors as on March 31,
2024 taken oan record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors s disqualified as on
March 31, 2074 from being appolnted as a directer in terms of Section 164{2} of the At

The maodificatior relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith, are as stated in paragraph (b} abowve,

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financiat
statements of the Company and the operating effectivenegss of such cantrols, refer o our
separate Report kn “Annexwre A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinfan on the
adequacy and operating effectivenass of the Company’s internal flnancial controls with
reference bo financial statements.

With respect to the other matters Lo be included in Ehe Auditor's Report in acceedanca with
the regulrements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amendad,

In ouy opinien and to the besl of our infarmation and according to the explanations given
to us, the Company being a private company, section 157 of the Act related to the
manaqerial remuneration is net applicable.

With respect to the othor matters to be included In the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule t1 of the Companles (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2024, as amended In cur opinicn and
ko the hest of our Inforenation and according to the explanations alven o Us!

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending Htigations on its financial position
i its financial statements - Refer note 30 (g} to the finandal statements,
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Wi,

The Company did not have any lang-term contracks Including derivative contracks for
which there were any makerlal foresesable losses,

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to he transferred, to the
Tnvestor Education and Protection fund by the Comparty.

fa} The Management has represented that, to the bost of its knowkadge and belief,
as distlosed i pote 38 (v} to the financial statements, no funds hawve boen
advanced ar loaned or invested (either fram borrowed funds or share premiurm
ar any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
parsan(s} or entity(ies), Incuding foretgn entities {"Trtermediaries™), with tha
understanding, whethes recorded in writing or otherwlse, that the Inbermediary
shall, divectly or indirectdy lend or invest In other persons ar entitios identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {"UWHtlmate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Baneflclarles,

ih) The Management has reprasented, that, to the hest of its knowledge and balief,
as disclosed in nete 38 {w) to the Anancial statements, no funds have been
received by the Campany from any person(s} or enkity(ies], inciudling foreign
ankities  (“Funding Partles”), with the understanding, whether recordad in
watting or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectty, lend or
imvest in other persons or entltes [dentified in any manner whatsoever by or an
benalf of the Funding Pary ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the Sike on behalf of the Ulbimate Bencficiaries,

{r) Based onthe audit procedures performed that have been considered reascnable
and approprlate Ik the circumstances, nothing has come to cur notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations upder sub-clavse (i) and (f§) of
Rude 11¢e), as provided under {a) and (b) above, contain any materlal
misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has nat
pregased final dividand for the year.

Based on our examination, which incleded test checks, the Company has used an
accounting soflware, operated by a third-party software service provider, for
emalntalning its books of account for the year ended March 31, 2024, which has a
feature of recording awdit tradl (edit log) facility except that in the absence of an
independent service asditor's system and organization contrels repoct covering the
audit trail regulrement, we are unable to comment whether audit trail feature af
the sall software was enabted and operated throughout the vear for alk relevant
transactions recorded in the software or whether there were any instances of the
audit trail feature balrg tamperad with,

#s proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companles {Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable fram
April 1, 2023, reporting under Rute 11 {g} of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rubes, 2014 an preservation of andit trail as per the statwtory reguirements for
recard retention is not applicable for the year ended March 31, 2024
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2. Asrequired by the Companies {Auditor's Repart) Order, 2020 {"the Order”) issued by the Cantral
Government in terms af Section 142711 of the Act, we ghve in "Annexure B a statement an the
matkers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firmfs Reglstration Mo, O0B0725)

Shrepdhar Ghanekar
Partnier

(Membership Ne, 210840%
UDIM: 242 10840BKFBKIEI43

Place @ Bengaluru
Dako: May 28, 2024
SMGAM 2024
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ANNEXURE A" 10 THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
{Referred to in paragraph 1{g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of aur report of even date)

feport on the Internat Financial Controls with reference to financlal statements under
Clause {{) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”)

We have audited the internat Aranclal controis with reference o financlal statements of YITP
Private Limlted [“the Company™) as at March 31, 2024 in comjunction wikth our audit of the Ind A%
financial skatements of the Company for the vear ended on that date.

Managemeant’s Raspansibility for Internal Financlal Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and malntalning internal fimanelal
cantrots based on the Internat controb with reference to financiat statements criterta established by
the Company conslderlng the essential components of Internal control stated in the Guldance Note
on Audi of Internal Financial Conkrols over flnanclal reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Indla. These responsibilities include the design, impiementation and malmitenance of
adequate internat financlal controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the ordery and
afficlent conduct of its business, Inciuting adherence to the company’s policles, the safequarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of rellable flnancial informatien, as required under
the Cotmpanies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsihility

Car responsibllity |5 to express an opinien on the Company’s Itternat financial contrals with reference
bo financial statements based on our audit, We conducked our audik in accordance with the Guldance
Mate on Audit of Internal Financial Contrals Over Financiat fReporting {the "Guidance Note") issued
by the [nstilute of Chartered Accountants of Indla and the Standards on AudHing prescribed under
Saction 143{10) of the Companies Ack, 2013, to the extent applleable to an audit of interpat financlaf
conlres with reference fo financial statements, Those Standards and the Guldance Note require that
we comply with ethleal requirements and plan and perfarm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
ghout whether adeguate internal financlat controls with reference o financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects,

Our audlt invalvas perforing procedures 1o obtalr audit ovidence about the adequacy of the internal
financiat contrals with reference to financial siatemeants and their operating effectiveness, O audit
of imternal financial controbs with referonee te financial statements included obtalndng  an
understanding of internal financial conkrols with referance ko financal statements, assessing the risk
that a materlal weakhess exists, and tasting and evatuating the design and operating effectivencss
of internal control based on the assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on the auditar's
judgernent, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or crror,

We belleve that the audit evidonce we have obtalned is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audlt aplnlon on the Company's internal flaanciaé contrals with reference to financial
statermnants.

Maaning of Internal Financiat Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial conbrol with reference to financiat skatements |s & process dosigned to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financizt statemments Tor external purposes in accordance with gencrally accepted accounting
orinclpies. & company's imternal financlal contral with reference to financlal statemaents includes those
palicies and procedures that {1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, In reasonable detail,
accurately and falrly reflect the transactions and disposillons of the assets of the campany; [2)
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gronvide reasomable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessarvy to permit preparation of
financiaf staternants i accordance with generally accepted accounlng principtes, and that recetpts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with autharisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonahle assurance regarding
prevertion or Umety detection of unauthorlsed acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assats that could hawe a makerlal effect on the financlal statements,

Inharent Limltations of Internal Financlal Contrels with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitatlons of internal flranclal conktrols with reference o flnancial
staterments, including the possiblity of collusion or improper managemeant override of controts,
material misstaterments due to error of fraud may aceur and not be detected, Alss, projections of
any evaluakion of the internal financial contrals with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with refarendca to financial stakements
may became inadequate herause of changes in canditions, ot that the degree of compHance with the
pollckes or procedures may deterlorata,

Dpinion

In our oplhlen, to the best of our informatlon and according to the explanations given o us the
Company has, in all material respacts, an adeguate Internal financial controls with reference to
finaneial statemants and such internal financial contrals with reference to financial staterents weie
operating effectivaly as at March 31, 2024, based on the criterda for Internal financial control with
reference ta financlal statements established by the Cormpany considering the essentlal cormponents
of internal control staked in the Suldance Mote on Auadit of internal Financial Controls Cwer Floanckal
Reporting issded by tha Institute of Chartered Accountanks of Tndia.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
|:FI_1_:-m'55i Registration Mo 0080725}
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shreedhar Ghanekar

Partnkr

(Membershio Mo, 210840)

UDIM: 242108408 FBK14243
FMace . Bengalurl

Date: May 28, 2024
SME AN 2024
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AMNEXLIRE “B* TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPOQRT

{Referred to in paragraph ? under ‘Report an Other Legal and Regulatery Requirements’
secticn of aur report of aven date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and ghven by the Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normat course of audit and to the best of our
knowiedge and bellef, we stave thak:

(il {a} [A) The Company has malntained proper records showing full particulars, including guarntitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property and Inmvestment
Property under Developmeant,

{B} As the Company does not hold any intangible asseks, reporting under clavse 3{i(ay(B} of
the Order |15 not applicable,

(b The Company has program of verdication of Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital work In
progress, Investment Properties and Investment Property ender Development 50 as to cover
all the ikems once every twa years which, in our apinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the pregram, no such assels
were due for physical verification during the year, Sinee no physical verlfication of Property,
flant and Equipment, Capltal waork in progress, Investment Propertles and Investment
Property under Pevelppment was due during the year, the question of reporting on enaterlal
discrepancies noted on verification does nok arise.

rc} Based on cur examination of the registered sale deed/transfer deed provided to us, we
report that, the title deeds af all the immovable properties, disclosed in the fnancial
statements included i lavestment proparty are hold in the name of the Company as at
the balance sheet date, except for the folkowing:

Relevant |Tme | Bescriplion of | Gross | Tithe  deed i whether titie | Property Raason for not pelng hefd |
Ttem in ; property Valum [Rs. ! haid in the | deed holder | held since | in the nama of the !
Balance aheat in i nama of is n | which date company
milllons) promaoter,
diractar or
; reletive  of :
i prengter) dl i
rector ar 1
amployes of
praomotary dF
..... recmr = BRIt
Trew eslricst Leraa g bualel Land B899 | F2PL Private | No 1M aly 2018 | A pes Amaloamatien Order
Sroperty lucited 2L i lniged : iwsuced by Fwe Matinnal
Hinjawadi Vilkagae, | Cumpany  Law  [ribunal,
Taluka Mulshi, Pure H Hydurabad, Lhe whale of the
PHALFICE MRASWNRG H moperty, rights aad poweers
Lo, L7 BB hectaras. af  FuPL Privace  Limited,
i helng the rransfarar

ampany, ha  wranaferred
wilheul any [urther ack nr
deed ko bransienoe Companrny
[WETP Private Limited ),

Fereehald 1.and 172.00 | Wanenbasy [T | No L oAnn Aqusl | A5 per the order doted Dok
located ak 'ark Mrivats 2001 18, M5 received fram ibe
Machaper  Vilkaga, i imired Registrar of Companies of
Serilingampatly Andhra Pracesh, the name
Mandal, of "Waronburg 1T Park BFur
Hangareddy i Limited” bos changod Lo Lo
17istiuct, Hyderabad WITD Privatiz Limited,
MEASIrng

Bl A4 2 Afl mnd

24,210 550 ards. — :

Page Y ot 16



{1

(ifi)

%
i

()

fe)

{a)

{b)

(a}

{b)

{ch

Deloitte
Haskins & Sells

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Egqulpment, Investment
Property and Investment Property under Development. The Company does not have any
Intangible assets of Right of Use assets.

Mo proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company
&5 at March 31, 2024 for holding any benaml property under the Benami Transactions
{Prohibltion} Act, 1988 (a3 amended in 2016} and rules made thereunder,

The inventories in the nature of sktores, spares and fuel were physicalty verified during
the year by the Management at reasonable intervals. In our aplnlon and accerding to the
information and explanations glven to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification
by the Management is aporopriate having regard to the slze of the Company and the
natuyre of its operatlons. Mo discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggreqate for each class
of invenktories were neticed an such physleal veriflcation of inventories when compared
with books of account.

Accarding to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of bme of the
year, the Coimpany has not been sanctioned any workleg capltal facliity frem banks or
financial institutions and hence reportlng under clause 3 {ii){b) of the Order |5 not
applicable,

The Company has provided loans and advances In the nature of leans during the year
and dekails of which are given below:

Particulars Laans including
Non- convertibla
Debentures
(Rs. in Millions) |

| A __Aggreqate amount granted during the vear: | e
oL Others . 1,523.28
i B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect
of ahove cases:* S :

Others s -: 1,523,328

¥The amounts reported are gross amounts, without constdering provisions made, if any.
(Refer noke & to the fnanclal staterments)

The Company has nok provided any quarantee or security bo any other entity during the
yoar,

The investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of the above-meptloned
loans provided during the year are, in our oplnton, prima facie, not prejudicial to the
Company's interesk,

In respect of loans granted and advances In the nature af loans provided by the
Company, the schede of repayment of principat and payment of interest has been
stipuiated and the repayrments of principat amaunts and receipts of interest are regular
as per stipulations except for the following:
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Namea of the  Nature | Amount | Due Extent of | Remarks
Entity ; (Rs.in Date Delay as
MiHion) at March
31, 2024
LOMA Co- | Tnteresk within 5 | Upte 3% | The Company is currenfly  in
Developers 2 | an loans 215,34 days Monkhs tiscusshons with the managament
Private Lirmited ' after the of LOMA for recovering Chese
(LOMA} end  of ;| amounts.
Phoenix Infocity gach f Upto 7 | The Company is currently in
: Private Llmited 20.15 financlal j months diseusslons with the management
P (PIFL) ) quarker of PIPL for recovering these
N amﬂLlntS- ERTTRTTRTIT=
Phoenix  Infrasoft § Upte 40 | The Company is currently in
Endia Frivate 66.44% Manths dizcugsions wikth the management
Lirvibed (PIIPL) ' of PIIPL for recoverlng  these ;
Phoenix Infraspace Lo 40 ¢ The Campany s currenthy  int
India Private 57 B4 Monkths discusslons with the managemnsent
Lirnited {FHTIPL) ’ : of PHIIPL for recovering  these
: - i amaounts, R
! Phoenix Techno Hub Upta 27 | The Company is currently in
Private Limited : 262.13 Months discussions with the management
{PTHFL) : ' of FTHPL for recoverlng  these
I e T amﬂuntg'
Phosnlx  WVentures Upto 27 | The Company is currently  in
Private Lirssibed 603.70 Months dizcusslons with the management
(feL) ' of PVPL for recovering  these
i amaunts,

¥ Excludes amaount of Bs. 10.70 million accrnged for first 18 months from the date of [nvestment

(February 12, 2019) for which paymenl would be adjusted in accordance with the terms of the

agreement, Delays reperted ahove have been accordingly compuied,

¥+ Excludes amount of Rs. 8.84 mililon acorued for frst 18 monkths fram the dake of investment

{February 12, 2019} for which payment would be adjusted in accordance with the terms af the

agreement. Delays reported aboave have been accordingly computed.

() In respect of followlng loans granked and advances in the nature of leans provided by
the Company, which have been overdue for mare than 90 days at the balance sheet
date, as explained to us, the Management has taken reasonabls steps for recovery of
the principal amounis and interest,

.
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T Name of the Entity | Number | Principas
......... of Cases | ovardue
LOMA Co-Developears
2 Private Llmited 13 : .
(LOMA) :

Phoenlx Infacity

Piivate Limeibed 7 _

: (PIPL)

Phoenix Infrasoft

Tndia Private Limited 13 .
[FEIFLYF g

Phoenlx Infraspace

India Private Limlted 13 .

P {PHIIPL)*=
Phoentx Techna Hub
Privake Limited g _
(FTHPLY
Phoenlx  Ventures

i Private Limited ; g9 )

- (PVPL) :

|

Interest
averdue

overdus

Rg in million

“Total | Remarks

21534

215.34

The Compary 15 currently in
dizcussions with the managerent
of LOMA for recovering these
amounks,

20.15

20.1%

Pl

discussions with the management
FIPL fov recowvering  these
amaunts,

66, 44%

06.44

The Company 15 currently in
dlscussions with the managernant
of PIIFL for recovering these
amoungs.

57 s

57.54

The Carnpany Is currently in
discussions with the management
of PHIIPL for recovering these
amaounts.

352.13

The Compaoy 5 currentiy in
discussions with Ehe managernent
of FTHPL for recovering these
amounts,

&13.70

The Company s currently in
discirssions with the management :
of EVPL for recovering these
aenounts,

= Exciudes amount of Rs. 10.70 mililion accrued for fArst 18 months {rem the date of investment (Febrizary
12, 2019 for which payment would be adjusted In accordance with the terms of the agreement., Delays
reported above have been accordingly computed,

% Eyxeludes amatnt of fs, 2.84 milien accrued for first 18 manths from the date of investment (February
12, 2019} for which payement woukd he adjusted in accordance with the terms of the agreement. Delays
repotted ahove have been accordingly computed.

Mo loan or advance o the nature of toan granted by the Company which has fallen fua

during the year, has bean renewed or exfended or fresh leans granted Eo sottle overdues
of existing loans given to the same partlas,

Accarding to informatlon and explanation given to us and based on the audit pracedures

performed, the Company has not granted any loans ar advances in nature of [cans either
repayable on dermand ar without spocifying any terms or peried ar repayment during
the year. Hence reporting under clause 3 (§ii)(f} is not applicable.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 1586 of the

Companies Act, 2013 In respect of loans granted, investments made,

The Company bhas not accepted any deposit ar amounts which are deemed o be deposits,

Hence, reporting under clawse 3 (v) of the Order is not apphlicable.

The maintenance of cost recards has nat been specliied for the activifies of the Company try

the Contral Governmend ender section 14801) of the Compantes Act, 2013,

le)
(f)
{iv]
[v)
vl
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In pespect of statutory dues:

[a} Undisputed statutory dues, Including Goods and Services Vax, Pravident Fund, Tnceme Tax,
Sates Tax, Sarvice Tax, Duky of custoams, duty of excise, Walue added Tax, cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to the Company have generaily been regularly deposited
by it with the approprlate authorities. We have been informed that the provisions of
Employvees” Stabe Insurance Act, 1948 are currently not applicable to the Company, There
were no Undlspubed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund,
Income tax, duty of custars, duty of excise, Malue added Tax, cess and other material
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a peried of more than six months from
the date they becams payable,

ih) Detalis of skatukory dues referred to In sub-clause (3} above which hawe not been depaosited
as on Mareh 31, 2024, on account of disputes are given batow @

e e e Rs. In Million
MNature of | Mature of | Forum Period to Amount Amount
Statute Dues where which the | Invalved Linpaid

Dispute Is  Amaount

I Pending | Relates S
Andira Sales tax | High Court of | 2002-03  [o 2236 373
Pradesh : ¢ Andhra 2004-05
General Sales | i Pradesh

texActdigny | | N :
Andhra Sakes tax | Assessing 2011-12 o 26.93 13.97
Pradesh WAT Officer 2i2-13
Act 2005 o
Finance Ack, | Service Cuskams Juby 2013 b .57 G.o3
15494 tax ! Excise & | March 2914 3 ]

; P Service  Tax | Aprll 2014 ko § 3.22 2.57
; appellate September |

Tr[bunal 2[)15 .. PR PR TPRR PR ]

ctober 2015 1.34 1.11

R { to June 2017 I
finange Acl, | Service Migh Court of i3 une 2007 Lo 232.61 281.53
1994 tax Telangana March 2011,

: Aorll 2011 to

H September
2012 and
Aprit 2314 to

: . . June 2017 | : ]

: CIEST Act, | Goods and | Superintenda- ; AY 2017-18, 1.47 ¢ 1.47
2017 Sarvico nt of Central § AY 2018-19

Tax Tax and AY 201%-
H 20}
£GST Act i Goods and | Dlrectorate F¥  2089-20 86.50 -
2017 Sarvice General of | to FY 2022-
Tax Goads |23
; Services Tox i
i Intelllgencs, &
Hyderabad
;
...... _—i

i
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o Rs, In Million
MNature of | Nature of | Forum Period to Armaunt i Amount

Statute Dues wherea which the Invoived j Unapald

Dispute is | Amount
e Pending Relates I

Incorne-tax Income [ Commissioner § AY 2007-08 | 44,22 44,22

Ack, 19461 Taxd of Income Tax § AY 2011-12 A0 7440

appeals AY 2012-1% | 3B.39 38.39

High Court of | A¥ 2013-14 33,54 28.61

Felangang AY 2014-15 34.11 -

Commissioner | AY 2015-16 20.65 20.65

§ of Income Tax

: appeats R

Assessing AY 2016-17 16,79 16,749

Officer S

: Commissioner | AY 2017-18 Z22.00 2240

of Income Tax ; AY 2031-22 &8.38 BE.38 |

appeals aY  2008-09, * *

2010-11 and
Y AV R 2018-19

Motes;

* In view of the short grant of TGS credik, the tax authorties have not demanded any
amount. However, this woutd result in lower grant of TDS by Rs, 61.97 rmidllion,

# Amount demanded is net of refund claimed by the Comparny 0 its return of income foe the
respective assessMmant yoars,

Thers were o transacklons relating to praviousiy unrecorded income that were surrenderad
ar disclosed as income in the tax assessments under tha Income-tax Ack, 1961 (43 of 19615
during the year.

[n our opinlan, the Company has not defauited in the repayment of loans or othor
borrowings ar in the payment of interest thereen o any tender during the year.

The Coempany has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financlal institution or
Sovernment or any Sovernment authority,

The Company has nat Laken any term [oan during the year and Ehere are na unutilzed teim
loans at the beginning of the yvear and hence, reparting under clause 3 {ix){c) of the Order
|s nat applicable,

The Company has not ralsed any funds on shart-term basis and hence, reporting under
clavse 3 (ix)(d} of the Order is nob applicable,

The Company did not have any subsldiary or associate or joint venture during the year and
herce, reporting under ciause 3 (ixHe) of the Order 15 nat applicable,

The Company has nol ralsed |sans durlng the year on the pledge of securities held in s
subsidiarics or joint venhwes or associate companles,

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial pilic offer or further pebllc offer

{including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3 {x3(a) of
the Order |s not applicabia,
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{t)

(a}

(b)

(el

(a)

th)

{ak(b},
fes

{d)

During the year, the Company has not made any preferentlatl alfotrment or private placemesnt
of shares ar convertible debentures {fudly or partty or optionally} and hence reporting under
clause 3 {xi(b) of the Order |5 not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Compary and no raterial fraud on the
Company has been aoticed ar reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (123 of Sectien 143 of the
Companies Act has been flled in Farm ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
{ Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and uplo the
date of this report.

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year and upte the date of Ehis report,

The Company is not a Midhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the Order
is not applicable.

In our aplnion, the Company is in compliance with Sectlon 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the detalis of related
party transackions have been disclosed In the financial statements etc. as required by the
appticable accounting standards.

I ocur apinion, the Company has an adequate Internal audit system commensurate wilky the
slze and the nature of its business.

We have considered, the internal audlt reports [ssued to the Company after the bafance sheet
date coverlng the petiod until December 31, 2023, Based on the information and
explanations provided to us, internat audit covering the balance perlod upto March 31, 2024
is due in the ensuing internal acdil cycle,

In our opirion, during the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactons
with its directors or porsans connected wilh its directors and hence provisions of section 192
of the Companles Act, 2013 are not applicabie to the Company.

The Campany is not required o be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Ack, 1934 Hence, reporting under dause 3 {xvil{a), (b} and (<} af the Order is not
applicable,

The Group {"Companies in the Group® as defined in the Core Investment Companies [Reserva
Bank) Dlrections} does not have any CIC (Core Investment Company) as park of the group
and accordingly reparting under clause 3 (xvil{d} of the Order is not appllcabia.

The Cormpany has net incurred cash {osses in the financial year covered by our audit and in
the immediately preceding financdat year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory acditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial raties disclosed in nete 39 to the financial statements, ageing
ant expected dates of reakization of financial assets and payment of finandcial fiabilities, ather
information accompanying the financial statements and owr knowledge of the Board of
Directars and Management plans and based on cur examination of the evidence supporting
Ihe assurtptions, nothing has come to our atiertlon, which causes us to belicwe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indlcatieg that Campany is nok
capable of meeting its fiabilitles existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, We, however, state that this is
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hot an assurance as to the future viabilty of the Company. We further state that our
reporiing is based en the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantoe ol any assurance that abl liabilikies fafling due within a period of ane year from
the balance sheet date, wlilf get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

() The Company has fulty spent the required amount towards Corporate Sociai Responsibillby
(C5R) and there are no unspent CSR amounts for the year reqdlring a transfer to a Fund
speclfied in Schedule VI to the Companies Act or specal account in compliance with the
provision of sub-section {6] of secton 135 of the said Act Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3 (xx) of the Qrder s not applicable for the year.

For Detoitte Haskins & Selis
Chartered Accountants
{Fier's Redlstration No, QOBR73S)

wal -

Shreedhar Ghanekar
Fartndy

{Membership Mo, 2108340}
UDIN: d4210840BKFBEI4.243

Place | Bengaluewe
Dake: May 28, 20124
SMGFANSZ024
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VITP Private Limited

CIN: U72200TG1997PTC026801

Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

ParHeulas Notes Mm:sa;f 2024 Marc:g;,r 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 68.41 27.34
Investment property 4 11,776.31 11,638.19
Investment property under development 5 1,112.09 573.26
Financial assets
Investments 6A 2,253.20 1,123.92
Loans 6B 400.00 1,627.00
Other bank balances 7 21.47 18.02
Other financial assets 6C 11347 100.85
Non-current tax assets (net) 8 705.53 67491
Other non-current assets 9 1,252.88 355.91
17,703.36 16,139.40
Current assets
Inventories 10 9.82 7.13
Financial assets
Investments A - 1,663.92
Trade receivables 11 97.11 24,29
Cash and cash equivalents 12 27445 1,605.65
Loans 6B 2,717.00 1,395.00
Other financial assets 6C 1,827.36 2,366.72
Other current assets 9 163.50 76.10
5,089.24 7,138.81
Total Assets 22,792.60 23,278.21
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 13 1,058.98 1,058.98
Other equity 14 4,562.91 3,615.38
5,621.89 4,674.36
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 15A 9,752.34 11,675.37
Other financial liabilities 15C 453.23 358.22
Provisions 17 13.08 12.99
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 18(a) 42743 270.71
Other non-current habilities 20 53.55 51.51
10,699.63 12,368.80
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 158 2,001.62 350.00
Trade payables 19
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 275 1295
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 21343 195.70
small enterprises
Other financial habilities 15C 3,902.80 5,552.75
Current tax habilihes (net) 16 213.20 3117
Other current habilities 20 137.21 9247
Provisions 17 0.07 0.01
6,471.08 6,235.05
Total Equity and Liabilities 22,792.60 23,278.21
Summary of Material accounting policies 22 - -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 0080725

Shreedhar Ghanekar
Partner

Membership No.: 210840
Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 28, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
VITP Private Limited

Nagabhushanam Gauri Shankar Sanjeev DaSgupta
Director Director

DIN : 08221638 DIN: 00090701
Place: Bengaluru Place: Singapore
Date: May 28, 2024 ‘.Date May 28, 2024

\Co)@%

I

Kotilingam Koppu
Company Secretary

Membership No.: (A-17903)

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 28, 2024



VITP Private Limited

CIN: U72200TG1997PTC026801

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Pt Not For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
tewdars otes March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Income
Revenue from operations 21 3,075.07 2,231.14
Other income 22 1,135.49 1,213.71
Total Income 4,210.56 3,444.85
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 23 8.15 7.04
Finance costs 24 1,527.80 1,632.13
Depreciation expense 25 815.71 601.49
Other expenses 26 684.04 481.63
Total Expenses 3,035.70 2,722.29
Profit before exceptional items and tax 1,174.86 722.56
Exceptional item 27 185.00 -
Profit before tax 1,359.86 722.56
Tax expenses 18(b)
Current tax 255.61 199.50
Deferred tax 156.71 57.01
Total Tax expense 412.32 256.51
Profit for the year 947.54 466.05
Other comprehensive income ('OCI')
[tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(i) Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (0.02) (0.00)

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 18(b) 0.01 (0.00)
Total other comprehensive income (0.01) (0.00)
Total comprehensive income for the year 947.53 466.05
Earnings per equity share [nominal value of shares Rs.10 (March 31, 2023 : Rs. 10)]
Basic (Rs.) 28 80.02 38.77
Diluted (Rs.) 28 80.02 38.77
Summary of material accounting policies 22

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 0080725

Shreedhar Ghanekar
Partner

Membership No.: 210840
Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 28, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

VITP Private Limited

Nagabhushanam Gauri Shankar

Director

DIN : 08221638
Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 28, 2024

Sanjeev Dasgupta
Director

DIN: 00090701
Place: Singapore
Date: May 28, 2024

Vsv—=

Kotilingam Koppu
Company Secretary
Membership No.: (A-17903)
Place: Hyderabad

Date: May 28, 2024



VITP Private Limited
CIN: U72200TG1997PTC026801
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in mullions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A, Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before taxation (after exceptional item) 1,359.86 722.56
Adiustments for:
Exceptional item (185.00) -
Depreciation expense 815.71 601.49
Interest income (733.26) (1,111.24)
Amortisation of marketing fees 97.87 50.74
Provision no longer required written back (215.06) (87.03)
Finance costs 1,527.80 1,632.13
Expected credit loss allowance 0.09 020
(Gain)/loss on discard/sale of property, plant and equipment and investment property (net) = 0.07
Operating Profit before working capital changes 2,668.01 1,808.92
Working capital adjustments
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables 7.53 (22.03)
Decrease/ (Increase) in other financial liabilities 219.59 176.86
Decrease in other liabilities 4490 30.60
Decrease in provisions (0.09) 0.03
Decrease in deferred revenue 210 20,65
(Increase) in trade receivables (72.90) (5.55)
(Increase) in inventories (2.69) (0.13)
Decrease in other financial assets (180.14) 0.82
(Increase) in other bank balances (3.45) (12.84)
Decrease/(Increase) in other assets (113.17) 167.92
Cash generated from operations 2,569.69 2,165.25
Taxes pad (104.19) (322.91)
Net cash flow from operating activities 2,465.50 1,842.34
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment including investment property, capital work-in-progress. (2,441.95) (2,349.05)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and investment property - 137.76
Interest Income on loans, investments and bank deposits 1,641.21 781.39
Investments in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months) (3.45) (12.84)
Investment in non-convertible debentures (1,129.29) -
Redemption of non-convertible debentures 1,663.93 1,700.18
Loans given (400.00) (100.00)
Loans realised 305.00 -
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities (364.55) 157.44
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 2,614.34 250.00
Repayment of borrowings (2,883.00) (700.00)
Interest paid on borrowings (3,163.49) (436.49)
Net cash used in financing activities (3,432.15) (886.49)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,331.20) 1,113.29
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Refer note 12) 1,605.65 492.36
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 12) 27445 1,605.65

Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 Proceeds Repayments of Fair Value Changes/ As at March 31, 2024
Principal Adjustments

Borrowings 12,025.37 2,614.34 (2,883.00) (2.75) 11,753.96

Total liabilities from financing achivities 12,025.37 2,614.34 (2,883.00) (2.75) 11,753.96

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 Proceeds Repayments of Fair Value Changes/ As at March 31, 2023
Principal Adjustments

Borrowings 12,457 48 250.00 (700.00) 17.89 12,025.37

Total habilities from financing activities 12,457.48 250.00 (700.00) 17.89 12,025.37

Note:

The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7- "Cash Flow Statements” as notified under Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015 (as

amended from time to time).

Summary of material accounting policies

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
ICAL Firm Regstration No.: 0080725

Shreedhar Ghanekar

2.2

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
VITP Private Limited

Nagabhushanam Gauri Shankar

Partner

Membership No.: 210840
Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 28, 2024

Director

DIN : 08221638
Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 28, 2024

Sanjeev Dasgdipta
Director

DIN: 00090701
Place: Singapore
Date: May 28, 2024

Kotilingam [\npp/

Company Secretary
Membership No.: (A-17903)
Place: Hyderabad

Date: May 28, 2024



VITP Private Limited
CIN: U72200TG1997PTC026801

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

a. Equity Share Capital

Number of shares Amount
Equity shares of Rs 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at March 31, 2023 10,589,824 1,058.98
As at March 31, 2024 10,589,824 1,058.98
b. Other equity
For the year ended March 31, 2024
Attributable to equity holders of the Company - Reserves and surplus
Particulars Capital redemption |Debenture redemption Gotstileaiive | Wenimiad savligs Total
reserve reserve
As at April 01, 2023 178.94 293.49 117.04 3,025.91 3,615.38
Profit for the year - - - 947,54 947,54
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - - - (0.01) (0.01)
Total comprehensive income 178.94 293.49 117.04 3,973.44 4,562.91
Add: Appropriation to Debenture redemption reserve - 55.39 - (55.39) -
Less: Transfer to General Reserve (refer note 15(i)) - (59.65) 59.65 - -
As at March 31, 2024 178.94 289,23 176.69 3,918.05 4,562.91
For the year ended March 31, 2023
Attributable to equity holders of the Company - Reserves and surplus Total
Particulars Capital redemption |Debenture redemption Fe I m— Retained earnings
reserve reserve
As at April 01, 2022 178.94 228.63 117.04 2,624.72 3,149.33
Profit for the vear - - - 466.05 466.05
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - - - (0.00) (0.00)
Total comprehensive income 178,94 228.63 117.04 3,090.77 3,615.38
Add: Appropriation to Debenture redemption reserve 64.86 (64.86)
Less: Transfer to General Reserve - - - - -
As at March 31, 2023 178.94 293.49 117.04 3,025.91 3,615.38

Summary of material accounting policies

(]
[¥]

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 0080725

Shreedhar Ghanekar
Partner

Membership No.: 210840
Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 28, 2024

CHARTERED

ACCOUNTANT

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

W Mc%""

VITP Private Limited

-2y

Nagabhushanam Gauri Shankar

Director

DIN: 08221638
Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 28, 2024

Sanjeev Dasgupla
Director

DIN: 00090701
Place: Singapore
Date: May 28, 2024

Kotilingam l( ppu
Company Secretary
Membership No.: (A-17903)
Place: Hyderabad

Date: May 28, 2024



VITP Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Indian Rupees millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

1 Corporate Information

X

=

VITP Private Limited ('VITP' or 'the Company') is a private company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered
office of the Company is located at Capella Block, 5th Floor, Plot No.17 Software Units Layout, Madhapur Hyderabad Rangareddi Telangana 500081 India. The Company is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Ascendas Property Fund (India) Pte Ltd

The Company is principally engaged in the business of developing, operating and maintaining industrial and IT/ITES parks on SEZ and non-SEZ lands and incidental and associated
activities. Information on other related party relationships of the Company is provided in note 34.

The financial statements were authorised for issuance by the Board of Directors on May 28, 2024.
Material accounting policy Information

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in all material aspects in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest millions, except when otherwise indicated.
Amounts displayed as 0.00 denote amount less than Rs.5,000 i..e (less than 0.005 Millions rounded to two decimals)

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared on going concern and accrual basis. The accounting policies have been followed consistently across all the periods in the financial statements,
All assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current as per Company’s operating cycle and other criteria defined in the Schedule 111 of the Companies Act, 2013, The operating
cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. Based on the nature of business and the time between the
asset acquisition and their conversion into cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of identification of current or non-
current assets and liabilities.

These Ind-AS Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments and defined benefit plans which have been measured at fair value or
amortised cost at the end of each reporting period as explained in accounting policies below.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;
Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
Functional and Presentation currency

These financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees (2), the functional currency of the Company, which is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates (the ‘functional currency”).

All amounts presented in the financial statements which also includes accompanying notes have been rounded off to the nearest million as per the requirement of Schedule III to the
Companies Act,2013, unless otherwise stated

Cash Flow Statement
Statement of Cash flows is prepared using indirect method as set out in Ind-AS -7 (“Statement of Cash Flows”),

Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in conformity with IND AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions in application of accounting
policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and accompanying disclosures. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, based on
historical experience and other factors including the expectation of the future factors that are believed to be reasonable. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimates are revised, and future periods affected.

Information about critical judgements, estimates and assumptions that have significant effect to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements are included in the
following notes below:

Accounting Policy

Note Reference
Reference

Judgement, Estimates, Assumptions

Estimation of useful life of tangible,
intangible assets and investment 22(d) 3and 4
property

Measurement of defined benefit
obligations and key actuarial 2.2(m) 29
assumptions

Recognition of current and deferred

2.2(k) 18
taxes

Impairment of Trade receivables:

22 i 11
Expected credit loss (e) (ii)

Measurement and likelihood of
occurrence of contingencies 2.2(n)
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2.2 Summary of Material accounting policy Information

a

Impact of the initial application of the new and amended IndASs that are effective for the current year

Ind AS 1-Presentation of Financial Statements

"The Company has adopted the amendments to Ind AS 1 for the first time in the current year. The amendments change the requirements in Ind AS 1 with regard to disclosure of accounting
policies. The amendments replace all instances of the term 'significant accounting policies' with 'material accounting policy information'.Accounting policy information is material if,when
considered together with other information included in an entity's financial statements,it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements."

The supporting paragraphs in Ind AS 1 are also amended to clarify that accounting policy information that relates to immaterial transactions,other events or conditions is immaterial and
need not be disclosed.Accounting policy information may be material because of the nature of the related transactions ,other events or conditions,even if the amounts are
immaterial. However not all accounting policy information relating to material transactions,other events or conditions is itself material",

Ind AS 8-Accounting policies,Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors -Definition of Accounting Estimates

The Company has adopted the amendments to Ind AS 8 for the first time in the current year.The amendments replace the definition of a change in accounting estimates with a definition of
accounting estimates.Under the new definition,accounting estimates are "monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainity".The definition of a change
in accounting estimates was deleted.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other
credits, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer, The Company presents revenue from contracts with customers net of indirect taxes in it statement of profit and loss.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In
determining the transaction price, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration, and consideration
payable to the customer (if any).

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized.

Lease rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct cost incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carryving amount of the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the relevant lease term

Rental income under operating leases having revenue share arrangements is recognized as per the terms of the contract.

Operating, maintainance and utilities income is recognised on rendering of services as per the terms of the contract

Car park income includes revenue earned from the operations of the parking facilities, which is recognized when the services are rendered.

Interest income, including income arising from other financial instruments, is recognized using the effective interest rate method.
Contract Balances

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer befare the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer,
Contracts in which the goods or services transferred are lower than the amount billed to the customer, the difference is recognized as "Unearned revenue" and presented in the Balance Sheet
under "Other current liabilities".

Contract cost assets

The Company pays sales commission for contracts that they obtain to sell certain units of property and capitalizes the incremental costs of obtaining a contract. These costs are amortized on
a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer of the property to the customer. Capitalized costs to obtain such contracts are presented separately as an addition to Investment
Property in the Balance Sheet

HARTERED
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Property, plant & equipment
Property, plant & equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition/construction, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use and initial
estimate of decommissioning, restoring and similar liabilities. Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately. This applies mainly to components of plant and equipment. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives, Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent expenditures related to an item of property, plant and equipment are added to its book value only if they increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously
assessed standard of performance.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income
statement when the property, plant and equipment is derecognised.

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalized. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period is capitalized to the extent to which the expenditure is indirectly
related to construction or is incidental thereto. Other indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period which is neither related to the construction
activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the statement of profit and loss,

Cost of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress.

Investment properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs, Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their
disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Though the Company measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an
annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer.

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at, based on the useful lives estimated by the management.
The useful lives estimated by the management are given below:

Catggory of Asset Estimated useful life (years)
Investment Property
Buildings* 30
Plant and Machinery 10-15
Fit outs** 10
Leasehold Land *** 99
Property, plant and equipment
Furniture and fixtures 10
Computer Equipment 3
Office Equipment 5

* The Company depreciates building component of investment property over 30 years from the date of original purchase. The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical
expert and management estimate, depreciates the building over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The
management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

** Depreciation on fit outs is provided over the remaining non-cancellable period or 10 years whichever is lower.
“** Depreciation on Leasehold Land is provided over the lease period.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment and investment property are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively,
if appropriate.

Impairment of assets

Non-Financial Assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
Company's of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount,

[n assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.
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The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a Company of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through
a loss allowance. The Company recognises lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial
assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the
financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

Leases

Company 15 a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases, Rental income from operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease, unless the lease agreement explicitly states that increase is on account of inflation. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. At the year end, all the monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currency are restated at the closing exchange rates. Exchange differences resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of such monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e,, the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial instruments (continued..)

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified as:

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Equity instruments measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) provided the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are sole payment of principal otherwise such financial assets shall be measured at Fair value thorugh profit or loss (FVTPL),

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A 'debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

» The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks
and rewards of ownership, When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities

are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process,

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses following hierarchy and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting
date.

Fair value hierarchy:

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

» Level | = Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

P Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

P Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Income taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based on the taxable income for that
period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach, deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

In the situations where the Company is entitled to a tax holiday under the Income-tax Act, 1961, no deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of timing differences which reverse
during the tax holiday period, to the extent the Company’s gross total income is subject to the deduction during the tax holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of timing differences which
reverse after the tax holiday period is recognized in the year in which the timing differences originate.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) may become payable when the taxable profit is lower than the book profit. Taxes paid under MAT are available as a set off against regular corporate tax
payable in subsequent years, as per the provisions of Income Tax Act. MAT paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The company recognize MAT credit
available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is
allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset, it is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as part of
deferred tax asset as "MAT Credit Entitlement”. The company review the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the company does not
have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

Emplovee Benefits

Short ternt employee benefits:

All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the services are classified as short term employee benefits, which include benefits like salaries, short term
compensated absences, performance incentives, etc. and are recognized as expense in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined-contribution plans:
The Company has defined contribution plans (where Company pays pre-defined amounts and does not have any legal or informal obligation to pay additional sums) for post employment
benefits (viz,, provident fund), and the Company’s contributions thereto are charged to the statement of profit and loss every year.

Defined-benefit plans:
The Company has a defined benefit plan (viz., Gratuity) for employees, the liability for which is determined on the basis of valuation carried out by an independent actuary (under projected
unit credit method) at the balance sheet date.

Other long term employee benefits:
Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability, are recognized
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCT in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated
absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. The Company presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance
sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date. Actuarial gains/ losses are immediately taken to statement of profit and
loss and are not deferred.
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A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of embodying economic benefits of
resources will be required to settle a reliably assessable obligation. Provisions are determined based on best estimate required to settle each obligation at each balance sheet date. If the effect
of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability
but discloses its existence in the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period and equity shares that will be issued upon the conversion of mandatorily convertible instruments. Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s earnings per share is the net
profit for the period after deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and
for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is

treated as current when it is:

» Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

» Held primarily for the purpose of trading

» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

B It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

» It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

P It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, The Company has identified twelve months as its operating
cycle.

Cash dividend to equity holders of the Company

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the
Company, Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the
Company's Board of Directors.

Inventories
Inventories consist of fuel which are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value which ever is lower.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less , which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.
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3 Property, plant and equipment

= Computer Office Furniture Total

Particulars s : "
Equipment Equipment and Fixtures

Gross carrying value
As at April 01, 2022 8.49 26.37 46.66 8152
Additions 045 - 258 3.04
Disposals/ adjustments* 19.60 19.27 96.73 135.60
As at March 31, 2023 * 28.54 45.64 145.97 220.16
Additions 253 42.83 9.48 54.84
Disposals/ adjustments* - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 31.07 88.47 155.45 275.00
Depreciation
As at April 01, 2022 4.25 14.16 30.80 49.21
Charge for the year 231 333 237 8.01
Disposals/ adjustments* 19.60 19.27 96.73 135.60
As at March 31, 2023 26.16 36.76 129.90 192.82
Charge for the year 262 743 372 13.77
Disposals/adjustments* - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 28.78 44.19 133.62 206.59
Net block
As at March 31, 2023 238 8.89 16.07 2734
As at March 31, 2024 229 44.29 21.83 68.41
Notes:

* The Management, during the previous year reviewed the gross block and accumulated depreciation across various classes of assets and carried out adjustments amounting to Rs. 135.60 million. The impact on the
net book value as a result of the said adjustments is Nil.

4 Investment property

Particulars Leasehold land Land Buildings Plant and Machinery Fitouts Total

Gross carrying value

As at April 01, 2022 630.99 172.00 7,110.10 1,113.20 52.70 9,078.98
Additions - - 4,011.24 1,211.32 - 5,222.56
Disposals/adjustments* S - (10.40) 317.23 8215 388.98
As at March 31, 2023 630.99 172.00 11,110.93 2,641.75 134.85 14,690.52
Additions - - 554.03 22202 52.79 828.84
Disposals/adjustments* - = = - - -
As at March 31, 2024 630.99 172.00 11,664.96 2,863.77 187.64 15,519.36

Depreciation

As at April 01, 2022 35.14 - 1,702.37 428.39 27.06 2,192.96
Charge for the year 622 - 43795 145.00 431 59348
Disposals/ adjustments - - (10.40) 37.23 84.38 391.21
As at March 31, 2023 41.36 - 2,129.92 890.62 115.75 3,177.65
Charge for the year 6.49 - 527.34 255.06 13.05 801.94

Disposals/ adjustments* - - - 7 - =
As at March 31, 2024 47.85 - 2,657.26 1,145.68 128.80 3,979.59

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease

As at March 31, 2023 12532
As at March 31, 2024 236.54
Net block

As at March 31, 2023 589.63 172.00 8,981.01 1,751.13 19.10 11,638.19
As at March 31, 2024 583.14 172.00 9,007.70 1,718.09 58.84 11,776.31
Notes:

Investment property with net block of Rs. 4,860.73 (March 31, 2023: Rs. 5,077.91) located in Pune is subject to first and exclusive charge in favour of debenture trustee, as per debenture subscription and inter se
agreement to secure the non-convertible debentures. Also refer note 15

* The Management, during the previous year reviewed the gross block and accumulated depreciation across various classes of assets and carried out adjustments amounting to Rs. 392 56 million. The impact on the
net book value as a result of the said adjustments 1s Nil
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Immovable properties not held in the name of the Company.

Relevant line item in Balance sheet Description of property

Gross Value (Rs. in

Title deed held in the

Whether title deed holder
is a promoter, director or
relative® of

Property held since

Reason for not being held in

millions) name of promoter*/director or which date the name of the company
employee of
promoter/director
Leaschold Land located As per Amalgamation Order|
at Himewadi Village, issued by the  National
Taluka Mulshi, Pune Company  Law  Tribunal,
District measuring, Hyderabad, the whole of the
10,1766 hectares, property, rights and powers of
630.99] FDPL Private Limited.| No 17-Jul-18|FDPL Private Limited, being
the transferor Company, be
transferred  withoul  any|
further act or deed o
Investment Property transferee  Company  (VITP
Private Limiled).
Freehold Land located at As per the order dated October
Madhapur Village, 18, 2005 received from the
Serilingampally Mandal, Registrar  of Companies  of]
Rangareddy District, 172,00 | Vanenburg IT Park Pt Ho 25 Apr.o| Andhra Pradesh, the name of
Hyderabad measuring, Limited “Vanenburg T Park  Pvl
69,647.60 and 24,200 Sq Limited" has changed to 1o
Yards, VITP Private Limited
Information regarding income and expenditure of investment property
Pt Yor the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rental income derived from investment properties 2,480.40 1,839.44
Operations, maintenance and other amenities income from investment properties 594.67 391.70
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) generating rental income (668.69) (469.65)
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) not generating rental income (15.35) (11.98)
Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation and indirect expenses 2,391.03 1,749.51
Less: Depreciation of investment properties (801.94) {593.48)
Profit arising from investment properties before indirect expenses 1,589.09 1,156.03

The management has determuned that the investment properties consist of two classes of assets - office and retail- based on the nature, characteristics and risks of each property.

As at December 31, 2023 and December 31,2022 the fair values of the properties (including Investment property under construction) are Rs. 39,798 (as per valuation report dated December 31, 2023) and Rs. 35,962 (as
per valuation report dated December 31, 2022) respectively. These valuations are based on valuations performed by independent external valuer, namely- Savills Property Services (India) Pvt. Ltd and CBRE South
Asia Pvt. Ltd for for the years ended December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 respectively , who specialise in valuing these types of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties i1s primarily based on average of fair values under discounted cashflow method ('DCM') and income capitahization method ('ICM’) and classified as level 3 fair value in the fair
value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs. There has been no change in valuation techniques used since prior years.

Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation on investment properties:

Investment properties Key inputs For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Office properties Discount rate- for completed buildings 11.50% 11.75%
Discount rate- for underconstrcution buildings 1475% 13.70%
Capitalisation rate 8.50% 8.50%

Retail properties Discount rate- for completed buildings 11.50% 11.75%
Discount rate- for underconstrcution buildings 1475% 13.70%
Capitalisation rate 9.00% 8.50%

In Income Capitalization Method, an overall capitalization rate 1s applied to a representative single period income to arrive at the value of the subject property. In Discounted Cashflow Method, a discount rate is
applied to a series of cash flows for future periods to discount them to arrive at the present value of the subject property

5 Investment property under development

Investment property

IR under development
As at April 01, 2022 - 2,954.69
Additions 303 2,841.13
Capitalised during the year (3.03) (5,222.56)
As at March 31, 2023 - 573.26
Additions (subsequent expenditure) 54.84 1,367.67
Capitahsed during the year (54.84) (828.84)
As at March 31, 2024 - 1,112.09
5.1 Investment property under development Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2024;
Amount in Investment property under development for a period of
TParticulars Total
Less than 1 Year 1-2Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years
Projects in progress 608.73 86.06 5.35 411.35 1,112.09
Projects temporanly suspended* - - - -
Total 608.73 86.66 5.35 411.35 1,112.09
As at 31 March 2023;
Amount in Investment property under development for a period of
Particulars Total
Less than 1 Year 1-2Years 2-3Years More than 3 Years
Projects in progress 128.64 19.86 1.44 42332 573.26
Projects temporarily suspended* - - - - -
Total 128.64 19.86 1.44 423.32

*There 15 no Investment Property under development whose completion 15 overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to the original plan
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6 Financial assets

Non- current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. Investments
Investments (unsecured) at amortised cost
Unquoted debt securities
5,330 (March 31, 2023: 5,330) non-convertible debentures of Rs.100,000 each fully paid up in LOMA Co-Developers 533.00 533.00 - -
2 Private Limited - [refer note (i)]
Nil (March 31, 2023: 4,000,000) non-convertible debentures of Rs.100 each fully paid up in Apex Urban - - - 400.00
Infrastructure Private Limited (Previously known Phoenix Urban Infrastructure Private Limited) - [refer note (ii}]
7,134,000 (March 31, 2023: 17,098,210) non-convertible debentures of Rs.100 each fully paid up in Phoenix Infocity 713.40 445.90 - 1,263.92
Private Limited - [refer note (iii)]
5,430,000 (March 31, 2023: 430,000) non-convertible debentures of Rs.100 each fully paid up in Phoenix Infraspace 543.00 43.00 - -
India Private Limited - [refer note (iv)]
4,137,895 (March 31, 2023: 520,000) non-convertible debentures of Rs.100 each fully paid up in Phoenix Infrasoft 413.80 52.00 - -
India Private Limited - [refer note (v}]
500,000 (March 31, 2023: 500,000) non-convertible debentures of Rs.100 each fully paid up in Hebbal Infraspace 50.00 50.00 - -
Private Limited - [refer note (vi)]
Ungquoted equity shares
500 (March 31, 2023: 500) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid in CapitalLand Hope Foundation India (formerly 0.01 0.01 - -
known as Ascendas Gives Foundation)
Unquoted government securities
National savings certificate 0.01 0.01 - -
Total Gross value of Investments 2,253.20 1,123,92 - 1,663.92
Less: Accumulated impairement in value of Investments - - - -
Net value of Investments 2,253.20 1,123.92 - 1,663.92
Aggregate amount of quoted investments - - - -
Aggregate value of unquoted investments 2,253.20 1,123.92 - -
Non- current Current
B. Loans at amortised cost As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Unsecured, considered good - [refer note (vii) to (ix)] 400.00 1,627.00 2,717.00 1,395.00

Total 400.00 1,627.00 2,717.00 1,395.00

Notes:

(1) LOMA Co-Developers 2 Private Limited ('Loma 2'): NCDs are 1ssued at par and are redeemable after 30 years at par. NCDs carry interest at 11.25% p.a. NCDs of Loma 2 issued are unsecured but (1) a
pari passu first and exclusive charge of the mortgaged properties in favour of the Debenture trustee, (11) a pledge on all the Shares held by the Existing Shareholders in Loma 2 in favour of the Debenture
Trustee, (i1i) a corporate guarantee from Aurum for the Debenture Repayment, in favour of the Debenture Trustee and (iv) Coupon Amount for a period of 2 (two) quarters, withheld by each of the
Investors (for the benefit of debenture holders) has been created.

(1) Apex Urban Infrastructure Private Limited (Previously know an Phoenix Urban Infrastructure Private Limited) ('AUPL'): NCDs of AUPL are 1ssued at par and are redeemable after 30 years at par
NCDs of AUPL amounting to Rs. 4,000 carry interest at 12.25%p.a. (13.50% tll September 30, 2018 and 13.75% till 16th February 2021). NCDs are unsecured but carry (1) first and pan passu charge of the

mortgaged properties in favour of the Debenture trustee, and (1) pledge on all the AUPL pledged shares proposed to be acquired by AUPL in PIPL, in favour of debenture trustee. The same has been
redeemed in the current year.

(1) Phoenix Infocity Private Limited {'PIPL'): NCDs of PIPL are issued at par and are redeemable after 30 years at par. NCDs of PIPL amounting to Rs. 959.82 mullion carry interest at 12.501%p.a. (13.045%
till September 30, 2018 and 13.545% till 16th February 2021). NCDs of PIPL amounting to Rs. 500 million carry interest at 12.25%p.a. (13.50% tll September 30, 2018 and 13.75% till 16th February 2021)
NCDs of PIPL amounting to Rs. 250 mullion carry interest at 12.25%p.a. NCDs 1ssued are unsecured but carry (1) first and pan passu charge of the mortgaged properties in favour of the Debenture trustee,
(i1) a pledge on all the Shares held by promoters in PIPL in favour of the Debenture Trustee, (in) pledge on all the AUPL pledged shares proposed to be acquired by AUPL in PIPL, in favour of debenture
trustee and (1v) corporate guarantee from PIPL for the Debenture Repayment, in favour of the Debenture Trustee (for the benefit of debenture holders) has been created. The NCDs amounting to Rs
1,263.92 muillion was repaid on May 02, 2023 and additional investment made Rs 267.50 mullion during the year.

(iv) Phoenix Infraspace India Private Limited ('PIIPL'): NCDs of PIIPL are i1ssued at par and are redeemable after 30 vears at par. NCDs of PIIPL carry interest at 13.50% p.a. NCDs of PIIPL issued are
unsecured but carry (i) first and exclusive charge of the mortgaged properties in favour of the Debenture trustee, (i) a pledge on all the Shares of PIIPL in favour of the Debenture Trustee and (i) a
corporate guarantee from Phoenix Infratech (India) Private Limited for the Debenture Repayment, in favour of the Debenture Trustee (for the benefit of debenture holders) has been created. Additional
investment made Rs 500 million during the year

Interest amount shall accrue from the funding date until the end of the 18th month and shall be due from the 19th month.

(v) Phoenix Infrasoft India Private Limited ("PIIL"): NCDs of PIIL are issued at par and are redeemable after 30 years at par. NCDs of PIIL carry interest at 13.50% p.a. NCDs of PIIL issued are unsecured but
carry (i) first and exclusive charge of the mortgaged properties in favour of the Debenture trustee, (i1) a pledge on all the Shares of PIIL in favour of the Debenture Trustee and (in1) a corporate guarantee
from Phoenix Infratech (India) Private Limited for the Debenture Repayment, in favour of the Debenture Trustee (for the benefit of debenture holders) has been created. Additional investment made Rs
361.79 mullion during the year

Interest amount shall accrue from the funding date until the end of the 18th month and shall be due from the 19th month.

(v1) Hebbal Infraspace Pvt Ltd (HIPL): NCDs of HIPL are 1ssued at par and are redeemable after 29.20 years at par. NCDs of HIPL carry interest at 11.50% p.a. NCDs of HIPL i1ssued are unsecured but carry
(1) first pari-passu charge on the Project Land and Project in favour of the Debenture trustee by way of mortgage by deposit of title deeds, (1) first pari-passu charge on the Project 2 Land and Project 2 1n
favour of the Security trustee by way of mortgage by deposit of title deeds,(ii1) a corporate guarantee from Gardencity, (iv) Personal guarantee from Promoter 1, (v) Pari-passu pledge on 100% of the
shares held by Gardencity and Promoter 1 in the Borrower in favour of the Debenture trustee
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(vi) Apex Urban Infrastructure Private Limited (Previously know an Phoenix Urban Infrastructure Private Limited) ('AUPL'): The Company has invested in intercorporate deposit of AUPL amounting to
Rs. 305 million on March 02, 2021. The loan 1s repayable on March 01, 2051 and carries interest rate of 13.75% p.a. until June 2021 and 13.00% p.a. thereafter computed on a quarterly compounding basis.
The interest 1s payable within 5 days from the end of each quarter.

The loan is unsecured but carry a (i) first charge on the project land and buildings of AUPL (ii) first charge on the rights of Phoenix Infratech India Private Limited on the project land and building (iii) a
first and pari passu by way of hypothecation and escrow of all the receivables and charge on the land and buildings of AUPL, Phoenix Ventures Private Limited ('PVPL'), Phoenix Infraspace India Private
Limuted ('PIIPL'), Phoenix Infrasoft Private Limited (‘'PIPL') and Phoenix Technohub Private Limited ('PTHPL") (iv) pledge on shares of AUPL, PIIPL, PVPL, PIPL and PTHPL (v) corporate guarantee from
Phoenix Infraspace India Private Limited and Phoenix Technohub Private Lmited. The same was repaid on May 02, 2023,

(vin) Phoenix Technohub Private Limited ('PTHPL'): The Company has invested in intercorporate deposit of PTPL amounting to Rs. 990 mullion on February 24, 2021 and Rs. 100 mullion on March 01, 2023
The Company further invested in intercorporate deposit of to PTHPL amounting to Rs. 280 mullion on July 21, 2023 and Rs, 120 million on July 24, 2023, The loan is repayable on September 30, 2024 and
September 30, 2026 respectively and carries interest rate of 13.75% p.a computed on a quarterly compounding basis. The interest is payable within 5 days from the end of each quarter.

The loan 1s unsecured but carry (1) first and pan passu charge by way of equitable mortgage on land including development and ownership rights and other rights and benefits in favour of security
trustee (i1) a first and pari passu charge by way of hypothetication on receivables, borrower's escrow account and all amounts credited / deposited therein and all investments in respect thereof, pledge on
all the PTHPL and Phoenix Infratech India Private Limuted ('PIIPL') pledged shares in favour of security trustee (iii) corporate guarantee from PIIPL for the loan repayment in favour of security trustee.

(1x) Phoenix Ventures Private Limited ('PVPL'): The Company has invested in intercorporate deposit of PTPL amounting to Rs. 1,627 million on March 02, 2021. The loan is repayable on August 31, 2024 and
carries interest rate of 13.75% p.a. computed on a quarterly compounding basis The interest is payable within 5 days from the end of each quarter.

The loan 15 unsecured but carry (i) first and pari passu charge on the land, buildings, ownership, leasehold and development rights, cash flows and future receivables of Phoenix Ventures Private Limited,
Phoenix Technohub Private Limited, Phoenix Infraspace Private Limited, Phoenix Infrasoft Private Limited in favour of security trustee (i) pledge on shares held by promoters in Phoenix technohub
private imited and Phoenix Ventures Private Limited in favour of security trustee (iii) corporate guarantee from Phoenix Technohub Private Limited and Phoenix Infratech India Private Limited in favour
of secunty trustee

C. Other financial assets (Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)

Non- current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Security Deposits 113.47 100.85 - -
Unbilled Revenue - - 3425 35.66
Interest accrued on deposits - - 8.98 42.39
Interest accrued on investments Z = 462,68 1,514.25
Interest accrued on loans - - 1,136.45 774.42
Other receivables (Refer note 27) - 185.00 -
Total 113.47 100.85 1,827.36 2,366.72
7  Other bank balances
Particulars As at As at
il March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Margin money deposit * 2147 18.02
Total 21.47 18.02
*Held as lien against bank guarantees
8 Non-current tax assets (net)
Particulars As st oy
s March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Non Current Tax (Advance income tax [net of 705.53 674.91
provision of Rs. 1,368.57 millions {March 31, 2023
1,540.43 million)
Total 705.53 674.91
9 Other assets (Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)
Non- current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As at
= March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Capital advances 743.21 7445 - -
Prepaid expenses 1.81 1.45 6.34 817
Rent free period amortization 456.25 51.09 33.61 56.56
Balances with statutory / government authorities 51.61 228.92 88.94 7.85
Advance to Vendors - - 14.61 3.52
Total 1,252.88 355.91 163.50 76.10
10 Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Stores, spares and fuel
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1

Trade receivables
Particulars Awat Anal
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Secured, Considered good

Due from related parties 0.66 -

Due from others 96.45 24.29
Receivables - credit impaired

Due from others 1.44 1.35

98.55 25.64

Less: Provision for doubtful debts (1.44) (1.35)
Total 97.11 24.29

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private
companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Ageing Schedule of Trade Receivables;

As at March 31, 2024;

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars
Not Due Less than 6 Months | 6 Months to 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
(1) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered 18.63 76.72 0.34 - - 1.42 97.11
good
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit - 0.14 - 1.30 - - 1.44
impaired
Total 18.63 76.86 0.34 1.30 - 142 98.55
As at March 31, 2023;
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars
Not Due Less than 6 Months | 6 Months to 1 Year 1-2Years 2-3Years More than 3 Years Total
(1) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered 476 2,04 0.10 040 16.52 0.47 24.29
good
(1) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
(u1) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit - 0.05 - - 0.44 0.86 1.35
impaired
Total 4.76 2.09 0.10 0.40 16.97 133 25.64
Cash & cash equivalents
Particulars Avat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Cash on hand =
Balances with Bank

- On current accounts 345 3.65

- On deposit accounts 271.00 1,602.00
Total 274.45 1,605.65
Share capital
Particulars sl i

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Authorised share capital
12,100,000 (March 31, 2023: 12,100,000) equity shares of Rs. 100 each 1,210.00 1,210.00
3,000,000 (March 31, 2023: 3,000,000) 1% fully convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10 each 30.00 30.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital
10,589,824 (March 31, 2023: 10,589,824) equity shares of Rs. 100 each 1,058.98 1,058.98
Total 1,058.98 1,058.98
a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Equity shares

s As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Number Amount No. Amount

At the beginning of the year 10,589,824 1,058.98 10,589,824 1,058.98
Movement during the year - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 10,589,824 1,058.98 10,589,824 1,058.98
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b) Terms/right attached to shares
Equity shares:

The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.100 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of Directors is

subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in

proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

¢) Shares held by holding company
Qut of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company are as follows:

Particulars Agat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Ascendas Property Fund (India) Pte Limited, the holding company
10,589,816 (March 31, 2023: 10,589,816) equity shares of Rs. 100 each 10,589.82 10,589.82
Total 10,589.82 10,589.82
d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Name of the shareholder No. Amount No. Amount
Equity shares
Ascendas Property Fund (India) Pte Limited, the holding company 10,589,816 99.99% 10,589,816 99.99%
e) Shares held by Promoters
As at 31 March 2024
. No of shares at the . B :
Pramdiariiaiie class of equity beginning of the change duringthe No of shares at the s o fotal dhites %» change during the
shares year end of the year year
year
Ascendas Property Fund (India) Pte Limited Equity shares of Rs 10,589,816 - 10,589,816 99.99% -
10 Each
Ascendas Property Fund Trustee Pte Ltd Equity shares of Rs 8 - 8 0.01% -
10 Each
As at 31 March 2023
class of equity bo o.f Sh.ams ot Eh change duringthe No of shares atthe % change during the
Promoter name beginning of the % of total shares
shares year end of the year year
year
Ascendas Property Fund (India) Pte Limited Equity shares of Rs, 10,589,816 - 10,589,816 99.99% -
10 Each
Ascendas Property Fund Trustee Pte Ltd Equuty shares of Rs. 8 ® 8 0.01% -
10 Each
Other equity
s s As at As at
Fardlcnlary March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Capital redemption reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year 178.94 178.94
Add: Movement during the year - -
Closing balance 178.94 178.94
Debenture redemption reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year 293.49 228.63
Add: Appropriations made during the year* 55.39 64.86
Less: Transfer to general reserve (Refer note 15(1)) (59.65) -
Closing balance 249.23 293.49
General reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year 117.04 117.04
Add: Transfer from Debenture redemption reserve (Refer note 15(1))* 59.65 i
Closing balance . 176.69 117.04
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year 3,025.91 2,024.72
Add: Total comprehensive income for the year 947,53 466.05
Less: Appropriations
Transfer to debenture redemption reserve (55.39) (64.86)
Closing balance 3,918.05 3,025.91
Total Other equity 4,562.91 3,615.38

* The Company has issued redeemable non-convertible debentures. Accordingly, the Companies (Share capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 {as amended), require the Company to create Debenture
Redemption Reserve (DRR') out of profits of the Company available for payment of dividend. DRR 1s required to be created for an amount which 1s equal to 10% of the value of debentures issued. The

Company has created debenture redemption reserve on a pro rata basis

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company had reedemed 1ts NCD's (Refer note 15(1)) and has accordingly transferred the amount in the DRR to general reserve considering the same 1s a free

reserve and the purpose for which the said reserve was created was achieved

Distribution made and proposed

The Company has not made any distribution of dividend or proposed any dividend for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

Debenture redemption reserve

Debenture redemption reserve represents reserve created out of free reserves with respect to redeemable debentures.
Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve created out of free reserves pursuant to buy back of its own equity shares
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(1a)

(ib)

(1c)

()

Financial Liabilities

K Effective interest . As at As at

Particulars rate (Average) Matuslty March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

A. Non-current borrowings

Unsecured:

Nil (March 31, 2023: 2,533) Listed, redeemable, unsecured and non-convertible debentures of Rs. 1,000,000 each 15.63% 2047 - 2,533.00

[refer note (i)]

3,838 (March 31, 2023: 3,838) Unsecured and compulsory convertible debentures of Rs. 1,000,000 each [refer note 11.93% 2048-2049 3,838.00 3,838.00

(in]

3,30,00,000 (March 31, 2023: 3,30,00,000) Listed, redeemable, unsecured and non-convertible debentures of Rs. 100

each [refer note (ia)] 12.00% 2031 3,300.00 3,300.00

Nil (March 31, 2023: 1,00,000) Red: ble, ed and tible debentures of Rs. 100 each [refer note

(ll;)]t arc ) eemable, unsecurs and non-convertible aebentures O eac [l’E er no 12.00% 2091 - 100.00

26,143,377 (March 31, 2023: Nil) Unsecured unlisted redeemable offshore rupee denominated bonds [refer note 12.34% 2053 2,614.34 =

(i1)]

Secured:

2,000 (March 31, 2023: 2,000) non-convertible redeemable debentures of Rs. 1,000,000 each [refer note (iv)] 14.05% 2024 2,001.62 2,004.37

Less: disclosed under current borrowings (2,001.62) (100.00)

Total 9,752.34 11,675.37

B. Current Borrowings

Unsecured:

Nil (March 31, 2023: 25,00,000) Redeemable, unsecured and non-convertible debentures of Rs. 100 each [refer note

(i0)] 12.00% 2023 - 250.00

:{;:I)](Mﬂmh 31, 2023: 100,000) Redeemable, unsecured and non-convertible debentures of Rs. 100 each [refer note {5t 5iid5 A i

2,000 (March 31, 2023: 2,000) non-convertible redeemable debentures of Rs. 1,000,000 each [refer note (iv)] 2024 2,001.62 -
2,001.62 350.00

Notes

Unsecured Debentures (Non convertible debentures): The Company has issued listed, redeemable, unsecured and non-convertible debentures (NCDs) to Ascendas Property Fund (FDI) Pte Limited
("Debenture Holder") of Rs. 1,000,000 each in two tranches, with the first tranche constituting of 2,368 NCDs on January 27, 2017, the second tranche constituting of 165 NCDs on February 10, 2017
aggregating to to 2,533 NCD's of Rs. 2,533 mullion which carry an interest rate of 14.25% (from July 01, 2023 interest rate at 16% p.a.). As per the terms of agreement interest for the period April 01, 2018 to
March 31, 2022 shall be payable within a period of 2 years and 11 months from the date of accrual. Subsequently the interest shall be payable within May 30th of the subsequent financial year. During the
financial year 2021-22 interest payment terms were amended and interest payable upto March 2023 will be due for payment on September 15, 2023 or any other mutually agreed date between the
Company and the Debenture Holder. All the subsequent interest payment shall be on "pay when able" basis.

The term of each debenture shall be thirty years from the date of 1ssue, however the Company has an option to redeem the debentures in part or full, at any time after the third anniversary but before
expiry of the term of thirty years. At the time of redemption of the debentures, the Company may, at its sole discretion, choose to redeem the debentures with a premium as shall be fixed at that time.

The Company has appointed M/s. IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited as Debenture trustee inrespect of the above listed debentures. The debentures were fully redeemed on May 03, 2023

Unsecured Debentures (Non convertible debentures): The Company has issued listed, redeemable, unsecured and non-convertible debentures (NCDs) Ascendas Property Fund (FDI) Pte Limuted of Rs.
100 each, aggregating to 33,000,000 NCD's of Rs. 3,300 mullion which carry an interest rate of 12% per annum. As per the terms of the agreement the Company shall pay interest based on availability of
funds and as decided by Board of Directors of the Company. During the financial year 2021-22 interest payment terms were amended and interest payable upto March 2023 will be due for payment on
September 15, 2023 or any other mutually agreed date between the Company and the Debenture Holder. All the subsequent interest payment shall be on "pay when able” basis. During the year interest
payment terms were amended and interest payable on March 31, 2024, March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2026 shall be due for payment on September 30, 2027 or any other mutually agreed date between
VITP (the Company) and APFF (Debenture holder). All subsequent payment shall be payable on annual basis (31 March every vear)

The term of each debenture shall be ten vears from the date of issue, however the Company has an option to redeem the debentures in part or full, at any time after the third anniversary but before expiry
of the term of thirty years. At the time of redemption of the debentures, the Company may, at its sole discretion, choose to redeem the debentures with a premium as shall be fixed at that time

The Company has appointed M/s. IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited as Debenture trustee inrespect of the above listed debentures

Unsecured Debentures (Non convertible debentures): The Company has 1ssued 10,00,000 redeemable, unsecured and non-convertible debentures (NCDs) of Rs. 100 each amounting to Rs. 100 mullion to
Ascendas Property Fund (FDI) Pte Limited on January 21, 2021 which carry an interest rate of 12% per annum 1ssued on January 21, 2021 . As per the terms of the agreement the Company shall pay
interest based on availability of funds and as decided by Board of Directors of the Company. During the financial year 2021-22 interest payment terms were amended and interest payable upto March
2023 will be due for payment on September 15, 2023 or any other mutually agreed date between the Company and the Debenture Holder. All the subsequent interest payment shall be on "pay when able”
basis.

The term of each debenture shall be ten years from the date of 1ssue with an option of prepayment. Pursuant to the Board approval dated April 27, 2023, the debentures were fully redeemed on May 03,
2023.

Unsecured Debentures (Non convertible debentures): The Company has 1ssued 25,00,000 redeemable, unsecured and non-convertible debentures (NCDs) of Rs. 100 each amounting to Rs. 250 mullion to
Ascendas Property Fund (FDI) Pte Limited on April 26, 2022, which carry an interest rate of 12% per annum. As per the terms of the agreement the Company shall pay interest based on availability of
funds and as decided by Board of Directors of the Company.

The term of each debenture shall be ten vears from the date of 1ssue with an option of prepayment. Pursuant to the Board approval dated April 27, 2023 the debentures were fully redeemed on May 03,
2023

Unsecured Debentures (Compulsory convertible debentures): The Company has issued unsecured and compulsory convertible debentures (CCDs) to Ascendas Property Fund (India) Pte Limited of Rs
1,000,000 each in seven tranches, with the first tranche constituting of 1068 CCDs on June 01, 2018, the second tranche constituting of 2350 CCDs on June 12, 2018, the third tranche constituting of 50 CCDs
on January 21, 2019, the fourth tranche constituting of 95 CCDs on February 11, 2019, the fifth tranche constituting of 50 CCDs on February 22, 2019, the sixth tranche constituting of 100 CCDs on April 26,
2019 and the seventh tranche constituting of 125 CCDs on June 03, 2019 aggregating to 3,838 CCDs of Rs. 3,838 mullion. CCDs of Rs. 1,393 mullion carry interest of 11% p.a. payable annually. CCDs of Rs.
2,445 mullion carry an interest rate of 12.00% p.a. for first two years from the date of allotment and 12.50% p.a. thereafter, payable annually. During the previous year interest payment terms inrespect to
the above CCD's were amended and interest payable 1s due on demand basis

During the year, the interest payment due until March 31, 2024, shall be due for payment on September 30, 2027 and subsequent payment shall be payable annually within 30 days from the closure of the
respective Financial Year or such other mutually agreed intervals

The CCDs shall be compulsorily convertible into equity shares of the Company on the basis of conversion ratio which can be fair market value as on the date of conversion subject to a minimum fair
market value of equity shares as on the date of allotment of CCDs. These CCDs shall be convertible into equity shares on 30th anmiversary from the date of 1ssue and allotment of such CCDs
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(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

(1) Unsecured unlisted redeemable offshore rupee denoninated bonds: On June 22, 2023, the Company issued 26,143,377 fully paid-up, redeemable, interest bearing, unsecured, offshore Rupee
Denominated Bonds (“RDBs”) amounting to Rs. 2,614.33 Million to its holding Company - “Ascendas Property Fund (India) Pte Limited” via private placement . The RDBs have a face value of Rs. 100
each and carry an interest rate of 11.67% (G-sec 7.17% + 450 basis points), payable on a half yearly basis (i.e., 30 September and 31 March of every year). The term of these RDBs is 30 years from the date of
first disbursement. (June 20, 2023)

During the year the Company has amended the terms of Interest repayment and as per the revised terms, the interest payment due until September 30, 2023, and subsequent payments shall be payable

within a period of 3 years from the due date.

(iv) Secured debentures: The Company has issued 2,000 redeemable, non-convertible debentures (NCDs) of Rs. 1,000,000 each to Ascendas [T Park (Chennai) Limited of Rs. 2,000 million on December 23, 2014
on a private placement basis, in accordance with Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014,

These NCD's are issued at par and redeemable after 10 years at par. The interest on the NCDs is payable quarterly. The Debentures carry interest @ 14.30% p.a. from January 20, 2017 (12% till January 19,

2017).

The NCDs are secured as below:

First and exclusive charge on the development rights of leasehold land of the Company and construction on property land in favour of debenture trustee, as per debenture subscription and inter se

agreement.

C. Other financial liabilities

Non- current Current
. As at As at As at a
Fattiiudan March 31,2024 March 31,2023 March 31,2024 Marc‘:snf 2023
Deposits received from customers 453.23 358.22 645.81 52123
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings (payable to related parties) - - 2,608.46 4,24140
Retention money - - 14233 94.05
Payable to capital creditors - - 506.20 696.07
Total 453.23 358.22 3,902.80 5,552.75
16 Current tax liabilities (net)
Particulars i ApdL
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current tax Liabilities (net) [net of advance income tax of Rs. 349.89 213.20 3117
mullions (March 31, 2023 : 12250 mullion)]
213.20 3117
17 Provisions
Non- current Current
Particulars As at As at Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for employee benefits - - - P
- Gratuity 0.35 028 0.05 0.00
- Compensated absences 0.10 0.08 0.02 0.01
Other provisions
- Provision for tax litigations 12.63 12.63 - -
Total 13.08 12.99 0.07 0.01
Parliculars Amount
for the years ended Dec 31, 2024 and Dec 31, 2023 respectively
Balance as at April 01, 2022 12.63
Movement during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 12.63
Movement during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 12,63
Provision for tax litigations 15 carned towards ongoing indirect tax litigations. Provision 1s based on the reliable estimates of the amount required to settle the obligation for such ongoing litigations
18 Income Tax
Particulars Bl Ayt
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(a) Deferred tax liabilities
Property, Plant and Equipment: Difference between carrying amount of fixed assets in the financial statements and as per Income-tax purposes 363.53 303.23
Impact of expenses offered for tax on payment but expense recogmsed in statement of profit and loss on the basis of amortisation 68.88 3649
432.40 339.72
Deferred tax assets
Impact of convertible debentures and unwinding of discounting of lease deposits received (4.98) (69.01)
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 427.43 270.71

Notes:

1) The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax habilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax habilities

relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority
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(b) Current tax

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are:

Pt For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Statement of profit and loss:
(i) Profit or loss section
- Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 255.61 199.50
- Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 156.71 57.01
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 412.32 256.51
(ii) OCI section
Net loss/(gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 0.01 -
Income tax charged to OCI 0.01 -
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023:
Piticidiss For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Accounting profit as per income tax 1,359.86 722.56
At India’s statutory income tax rate of 29.12% (March 31, 2023: 29.12%) 395.99 21041
Impact of Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes:
Depreciation 27.55 31.36
Others (11.22) 14.74
At the effective income tax rate 41232 256.51
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 412.32 256.51
19 Trade payables
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note below) 275 12.95
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 121.03 145.00
Trade payables to related parties other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 9240 50.70
Total 216.18 208.65

The above information regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties are identified on the basis of information available with the Company. Refer note 40 for the
amount outstanding to micro enterprises and small enterprises as at March 31, 2024 and as at March 31, 2023

19.1 Trade Payable Ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2024;
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Total
Not Due Less than 1 Year 1-2Years 2-3Years More than 3 Years
(1) MSME 275 - - - - 275
(1) Others 132.77 80.50 0.07 0.09 - 21343
(in) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
(1v)Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 135.52 80.50 0.07 0.09 - 216.18
As at March 31, 2023;
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Total
Not Due Less than 1 Year 1-2Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years
(i) MSME - 1295 - - - 12.95
(1) Others 123.05 62.97 - 9.22 0.45 195.70
(i) Disputed dues - MSME - - - = - -
(1iv)Disputed dues - Others - - - = - -
Total 123.05 75,92 - 9.22 0.45 208.65
20 Other current liabilities Non- current Current

. As at As at As at As at
Batiailass March 31,2024 March 31,2023 March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Deferred lease rentals - 32.58 16.54
Unearned revenue 53.55 51.51 43.26 31.50
Statutory dues - 61.37 4443
Total 53.55 51.51 137.21 9247

HARTERED

COUNTANTS
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21 Revenue from operations

Particalats For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Lease Rentals 2,480.40 1,839.44

Revenue from contract with customers

Maintenance income 49646 301.23

Parking Income 75.19 69.12

Other amenities income 23,02 2135

Total Revenue from Contract with Customers 3,075.07 2,231.14

Timing of revenue recognition

Goods transferred at a point in time - -

Services transferred over time 2,578.61 1,929.91

Contract balances

Contract Assets

Trade receivables 97.11 2429

Contract Liabilities

Unearned Revenue 3258 16.54

Notes:

a. Trade receivables are generally due within 1 month upon completion of service. In certain contracts, advances are required before the service is provided.

b. Contract assets represents unbilled revenue, which is excess of revenue over billing. The outstanding balances of these accounts increased primarily on account of

certain billing undertaken post year-end.

c. Contract liabilities represents income received in advance from customers, which is in the nature of deferred revenue.

22 Other income

PaticiiLica For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provisions no longer required written back 215.06 87.03
Sale of scrap 217 13.13
Interest income
Bank deposits 52.31 53.72
Debentures and Loans 840.67 1,054.31
Others 25.28 32
Miscellaneous income 0.00 231
Total 1,135.49 1,213.71
23 Employee benefits expense
Pattivilars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries, wages and bonus 7.88 6.77
Contribution to provident and other funds 0.18 0.18
Gratuity expense (Refer note 29) 0.09 0.08
Total 8.15 7.04
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24

26

Finance costs

Particilais For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest expense on Debentures 1,480.54 1,594.08
Less :- Interest capitalised (effective interest rate - 11.34 %) - (23.51)
Net Interest expense on Debentures 1,480.54 1,570.57
Interest expense on Intercorporate deposit - 32.81
Interest on delayed payment of Taxes 278 -
Interest expense on Deposits received from Customers 44.48 28.75
Total 1,527.80 1,632.13
Depreciation expense
IO, For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 13.77 8.01
Depreciation on investment properties 801.94 593.48
Total 815.71 601.49
Other expenses
Particulars For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Power and fuel 13.89 4.50
Repairs and maintenance
Buildings 143.03 114.85
Plant and machinery 97.56 70.81
Insurance 9.73 6.67
Property tax 51.76 37.27
Property management fee 60.54 4412
Lease management fee 30.27 22.06
General management fee 40.86 43.32
Security charges 59.81 4277
Rates and taxes 1.31 0.25
Travelling and conveyance 5.44 1.92
Legal and professional fees (Refer note A below) 31.60 16.23
Marketing expenses 97.87 50.74
Advertising and publicity expenses 14.56 5.01
CSR expenses (Refer note B below) 13.30 11.71
Bad Debts Written Off 1.96 -
Expected credit loss allowance 0.09 0.20
Loss on discard/sale of property, plant and equipment and investment property - 0.07
Miscellaneous expenses 10.46 9.13
Total 684.04 481.63
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A Legal and professional charges include the following amounts paid/ payable to auditors (excluding goods and service tax)

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

s March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
As auditor
Audit fees 1.82 1.35
Limited review 0.60 040
Group Reporting Fee 0.50 0.50
Tax Audit Fees 0.42 -
Certificate Fees 0.55 -
Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses 0.09 0.07
Total 3.98 232

B Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

Particalacy March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 13.30 11.71
Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 13.30 11.71
Amount spent during the year ending on other than construction/ acquisition of any asset 13.30 1171
Excess/(Shortfall) at the end of the year - -
Total of previous year (shortfall)/excess - -
Reason for shortfall NA NA

Note:
1. As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the shortfall in the current year can be set off against the excess spent in the previous years. During the FY 2022-23 & FY
2023-24, there is no excess/shortfall in the amount spent.

2. In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013
(‘the Act’), in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act
3

. There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of
section 135 of the Act.

4. The Company has made the payment to CapitalLand Hope Foundation India (formerly known as Ascendas Gives Foundation) who in turn has used the funds in the
below projects:

CSR Activities For the Year Ended Amount transferred

March 31,2024  to ongoing projects

Construction of School at Manikonda 13.30 -

TOTAL 13.30 -

27 Exceptional item For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Exit fees for early redemption of investments * 185.00 -
185.00 -

* The Company had made investments in the NCD's of "Phoenix Infocity Private Limited" (Phoenix) amounting to Rs. 1,710 million on June 12, 2018, the term of the above
NCD's was 30 years.

During the year, Phoenix had prematurely redeemed the NCD's amounting to Rs. 1,263 million including interest accrued amounting to Rs. 1,026 million.

In view of the above early redemption, the Company had charged Phoenix a one-time exit fee of Rs. 185 million.Considering the nature of the transaction and the amount
involved, the same had been disclosed as ‘exceptional item” for the year ended March 31, 2024
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29

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during

the year and equity shares that will be issued upon the conversion of mandatorily convertible instruments.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year

plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Profit attributable to equity holders for basic earnings 047.53 466.05
Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each outstanding during the period 10,589,824 10,589,824
Add: Equity shares to be issued upon the conversion of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 1,251,983 1,431,240
Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each outstanding during the period used in

calculating basic and diluted EPS 11,841,807 12,021,064
Earning per share (EPS)

Basic (Rs.) 80.02 38.77
Diluted (Rs.) 80.02 38.77

Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last
drawn salary) for each completed year of service subject to a maximum of Rs, 2 million. The scheme is funded with LIC, the contributions are paid to Capitaland
Services (India) Private Limited, who contributes to LIC. The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit

and loss and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for gratuity benefit. Amount included are rounded off to two decimals.

Particulars

As at March 31,
2024

As at March 31, 2023

Statement of profit and loss

Net employee benefit expense (recognized in employee benefits expense)

Current service cost

Interest cost on benefit obligation
Expected return on plan assets

Net actuarial loss/ (gain) recognized
Net benefit expense

Balance sheet
Defined benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets
Plan (asset)/ liability

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation

Opening defined benefit obligation
[nterest cost

Current service cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligation
Closing defined benefit obligation

Changes in the fair value of plan assets
Opening fair value of plan assets

Expected return

Contributions by employer
Acquisition/Business Combination/ Divestiture
Actuarial gain/ (loss)

Closing fair value of plan assets

Actual return on plan assets
Expected return on plan assets
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets

CHARTERED \fT!

ACCOUNTANTS

0.07 0.07
0.02 0.01
0.09 0.08
0.40 0.28
0.40 0.28
0.29 0.21
0.02 0.01
0.07 0.07
0.02 -

0.40 0.29
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The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation

Discount rate 7.18% 7.57%
Salary Increase Rate 10.00% 10.00%
Mortality Rate IALM 2012-14 [ALM 2012-14

ultimate ultimate
Withdrawal Rate 15.00% 12.00%
Retirement Age 60 years 60 years

Commitments and contingencies

a. Leases

Operating lease commitments - Company as lessor

The Operating leases on renting Investment Property entered into by the Company are usually for a period between 3 years to 15 years, which include both cancellable
and non-cancellable leases. The lessee has the option to either renew the lease for a further period as may be decided upon by mutual consent or vacate the premises.
During the tenure of the lease, the Operation and Maintenance charges are to be borne by the lessee for all the services and facilities provided by the Company.

Refer note 21 for lease income recognised in Statement of profit and loss

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

As at March 31,  As at March 31, 2023

2024
Within one year 1,511.94 821.34
After one year but not more than five years 2,883.99 841.80
More than five years = =
Total 4,395.93 1,663.14

b. Commitments

i) The estimated amount of contracts, net of advances remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided is Rs. 3,011.42 million (March 31, 2023: Rs. 1,047.65
million).

ii. For commitments relating to debentures issued by the Company, refer note 15.

c. Impact of pending Litigations

AsatMarch3l, o\ Mareh 31, 2023

2024
Sales tax matters under dispute (Refer note i) 15.12 15.12
Service tax matters under dispute (Refer note ii) 284.82 284.82
Income-tax matters under dispute (Refer note iii) 468.38 380.00
GST matters under dispute (Refer note iv) 87.97 -

The amounts disclosed above represent our best estimate and the uncertainties are dependent on the outcome of the legal processes initiated by the Company or the
claimant as the case may be.

Sales tax matters under dispute
The Company has received various demand orders from Sales Tax authorities amounting to Rs. 49.28 million for the periods 2002-03 to 2004-05, 2011-12 and 2012-13
demanding VAT on fit out rentals collected by the Company from its customers. The same has been disclosed as contingent liability (net of provision).

Service tax matters under dispute

The Company has received various demand orders from Service Tax authorities amounting to Rs. 287.74 million for periods June 2007 to March 2011, April 2011 to
September 2012, April 2010 to June 2017 imposing service tax on diesel reimbursement and pre termination charges collected by the Company. Company received a
favorable order from CESTAT on 8th July 2022, further Service Tax authorities further appeal filed on 26th July 2023 before the Hon'ble High Court. The same has been
disclosed as contingent liability (net of provision).

(iii) Income-tax matters under dispute

Income Tax Assessment AY 2007-08 : The Company has received an Order Giving Effect to the order of the Hon'ble ITAT on October 25, 2021 from the Deputy
Commissioner of Income-tax (AQ) demanding Rs. 44.22 million (including interest under Section 234B & 234C of the Act amounting to Rs. 14.48 million and Rs. 0.31
million respectively) for the subject AY, after considering regular assessment tax of Rs. 9.56 million as remitted by the Company. AO made the following
additions/ disallowances to the assessed income of the Company:
- Disallowance of depreciation amounting to Rs. 4.74 million with respect to additions made to fixed assets during the year amounting to

Rs. 47.91 million.
- Addition under section 68 of the Act amounting to Rs. 90.00 million being loan taken from Information Technology Park of Bangalore (ITPB).
- Interest with respect to the above loan amounting to Rs. 0.44 million.

The Company has filed an appeal to CIT(A) challenging the same.
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Income Tax Assessment AY 2011-12 and AY 2012-13 : The Company has received income tax assessment orders for AY 2011-12, AY 2012-13, The AO has brought to tax
the excess of Fair market value (‘FMV’) of shares over and above the consideration paid to Ascendas Property Fund (FDI) Pte Limited on Buy-back of shares as ‘Income
from other sources’ in the hands of the Company. The Company has filed appeal before CIT(A).

Income Tax Assessment AY 2013-14 and AY 2014-15 : The Company has received income tax assessment orders for AY 2013-14 and AY 2014-15, The AO has brought to
tax the excess of Fair market value (‘'FMV’) of shares over and above the consideration paid to Ascendas Property Fund (FDI) Pte Limited on Buy-back of shares as
‘Income from other sources’ in the hands of the Company. The CIT(A) has passed the orders for both the assessment year dated October 26, 2017, upholding the
addition made by the AO under Section 56(2)(viia) of the Act in respect of shares bought back by the Company to the extent of difference between the aggregate fair
market value of the shares bought and consideration paid on buyback. The Company filed appeal with Income Tax Appellate Tribunal against the CIT(A) order in
January 2018. During the year the Company has received a favorable order from the ITAT, the department has appealed to the higher authorities.

Income Tax Assessment AY 2015-16 and AY 2016-17 : Income Tax Assessment Order AY 2015-16 and AY 2016-17 - Pursuant to rectification petition made by the
Company for AY 2011-12 and AY 2012-13, wherein the available MAT credits which were earlier utilized for AY 2013-14, AY 2014-15, AY 2015-16 and AY 2016-17 now
have been adjusted against AY 2011-12 and AY 2012-13. VITP has filed a combined letter for rectification of mistakes apparent on record in respect of the above-
mentioned rectification order. Accordingly, post rectification the demand notice was received by the Company in respect of short payment of Tax.

Income Tax Assessment AY 2017-18 : The Company had received transfer pricing order for AY 2017-18 dated January 26, 2021 and draft assessment order dated April
30, 2021 enhancing the taxable income by Rs, 22.68 million primarily on account of transfer pricing adjustment under section 92CA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, with
respect to interest expense on Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) issued to Ascendas Property Fund (FDI) Pte Limited. The Company has received the final
assessment order dated June 28, 2021 confirming the adjustment and demanding the tax amount of Rs. 6.80 million. The Company has filed an appeal before CIT(A).

Income Tax Assessment AY 2017-18 : The Company had received transfer pricing order for AY 2017-18 dated January 29, 2021 and draft assessment order dated
September 30, 2021 enhancing the taxable income by Rs. 4.39 million primarily on account of transfer pricing adjustment under section 92CA of the Income Tax Act,
1961, with respect to interest expense on Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) issued to Ascendas Property Fund (FDI) Pte Limited. The Company has received the final
assessment order dated November 29, 2021 confirming the adjustment. The Company has filed an appeal before CIT(A).

Income Tax Assessment Order for AY 2018-19 : The Company has received 143(3) order dated April 18, 2021 accepting the returned income of VITP. On perusal of the
order, it is observed that the AO has short, granted TDS credit to the extent of Rs. 49.91 million as compared to credit claimed in ITR. Further, basis updated Form
26AS, VITP is eligible to claim additional TDS credit of Rs. 1.23 million which was not claimed in the ITR. The Company has filed Appeal before CIT(A).

Income Tax Assessment Order for AY 2008-09, AY 2010-11 and AY 2018-19 : The Company had filed a rectification petition for short grant of TDS of Rs. 10.63 million
for AY 2008-09, Rs. 0.24 million for AY 2010-11 and Rs. 51.19 million for AY 2018-19.

Income Tax Assessment AY 2021-22 : The Company had received transfer pricing order for AY 2021-22 dated September 30, 2023 and draft assessment order dated
December 27, 2023 enhancing the taxable income by Rs. 578.80 million primarily on account of transfer pricing adjustment under section 92CA of the Income Tax Act,
1961, with respect to interest expense on Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) and compulsory convertible debenture (CCD) issued to Ascendas Property Fund (FDI)
Pte Limited and Ascendas Property Fund (India) Pte Ltd respectively. The Company has received the final assessment order dated February 28, 2024 confirming the
adjustment and demanding the tax amount of Rs. 88.38 million. The Company has filed an appeal before CIT(A).

(iv) GST matters under dispute

31

a) Departmental audit had been conducted by the department for the period July 2017 to March 2020 and issued a show cause notice for wrong availment of blocked
ITC on the goods in contravention of Section 17(5)on August 23, 2022 for an amount of Rs 1.47 million. The Company received a order on March 30, 2024 confirming the
demand.

b) The Company has received show cause notice for wrong availment of ITC on construction related goods or services in contravention of Section 17(5) on May 15, 2024
of an amount of Rs 688.59 million against which the company has reversed ITC of Rs 639.09 million under protest. Interest and penalty as applicable is proposed

Segment information

The Company is principally engaged in the business of developing, operating and maintaining industrial and IT/ITES parks on SEZ and non-SEZ lands and incidental
and associated activities. As such, the Company operates in a single business and geographic segment and hence disclosing information as per the requirements of Ind
AS 108 "Operating segments” is not required. Further, no single major customer represents sales of more than 10%.

The Company is domiciled in India and all the non-current assets of the Company are located in India. The Company's revenue from operations from external
customers relate to leasing in the nature of lease rental income, operations and maintenance income and other amenities income as disclosed in the Statement of profit
and loss read with note 21.
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32 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
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The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

a) Tax litigations

The Company is subject to periodic assessments by tax authorities on various direct and indirect tax matters arising during the normal course of business. These areas
include disputes in respect of income tax, service tax and value-added tax. Judgement is required in assessing the tax issues and the potential exposures to determine
whether, and how much, to provide in respect of tax disputes. At March 31, 2024, the Company has disclosed contingent liabilities arising from tax disputes as set out
in note 30 to the Ind AS financial statements.

b) Accounting for leases

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made judgement relating to determination of lease classification which has the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

The Company has entered into commercial property leases on its investment properties. The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements such as the lease term not constituting a substantial portion of the economic life of the commercial property, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and so accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

¢) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax asset, comprising of Minimum Alternative Tax (“MAT") credit is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the Company will pay normal income tax
during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward and sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the MAT
credit can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of MAT credit that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

d) Useful lives of Investment Property and Property, Plant and Equipment - Refer note 2.2(d)

f) Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, in respect of which the reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not discounted to its
present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. A contingent asset is neither recognised nor disclosed
in the financial statements.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise of borrowings, security deposits, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to
finance and support the entity’s operating and investing activities. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans given in the form of debentures, trade and
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, and other bank balances that derive directly from its operating and investing activities.

The Company is exposed to credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s senior
management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The
financial risk committee provides assurance to the Company’s senior management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and
procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the entity’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarized below.

i. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and investing activities (short term bank deposits and loans/debentures). Credit
appraisal is performed by the management before lease agreements are entered into with customers and loans given in the form of debentures. The risk in respect of
customers is mitigated due to customers placing significant amount of security deposits for lease and fit-out rentals and in respect of debentures by obtaining necessary
collateral security.

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company's policy.
Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are
reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the vear subject to approval of the Company’s Finance Committee.
The limits are set to minimize the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through a counterparty’s potential failure to make payments. The
Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement of financial position at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are the carrying amounts
as illustrated in note 6A, 6B, 6C, 7, 11 and 12.

At the balance sheet date, there was no significant concentration of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrving value of each
financial asset in the balance sheet,
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The ageing analysis of the trade receivables (gross of provisions) has been considered from the date invoice falls due and not impaired is as follows:

As at March 31,
2024 As at March 31, 2023
Upto six months 95.49 6.85
More than six months 3.06 18.79
Total 98.55 25.64
The carrying amount of trade receivables determined to be impaired is as follows :
As at March 31,
2024 As at March 31, 2023
Gross amount 1.4 1.35
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (1.44) (1.35)

Total - -

ii. Liquidity Risk
The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank deposits and loans.
The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments (including interest payments):

Within 1 year 1to 5 years After 5 years Total

As at March 31, 2024

Borrowings* 2,001.62 - 5,914.34 7,915.96
Other financial liabilities 3,902.80 453.23 . 4,356.03
Trade payables 216.18 - " 216.18
Total 6,120.60 453.23 5,914.34 12,488.17
As at March 31, 2023

Borrowings 350.00 - 7,837.37 8,187.37
Other financial liabilities 5,5652.75 358.22 - 5,910.97
Trade payables 208.65 - - 208.65
Total 6,111.40 358.22 7,837.37 14,306.99

*excludes Compulsorily Convertible Debentures of Rs. 3,838 million (March 31, 2023: Rs. 3,838 million) refer Note 15(ii) for details
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34 Related party disclosures

=

Nature of relationship
Ultimate holding company

Holding company

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year
Enterprise over which investor exercises control

Enterprise over which investor exercises control

Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel

Details of related party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

Name of the related party
CapitaLand India Trust (Formerly known as Ascendas India
Trust), Singapore

Ascendas Property Fund (India) Pte Ltd

CapitaLand Hope Foundation (India) (formerly known as
Ascendas Gives Foundation)

Capitaland Services (India) Private Limited (formerly known
as Ascendas Services (India) Private Limited)

Ascendas Property Fund (FDI) Pte Ltd

Information Technology Park Limited

Ascendas IT Park (Chennai) Limited

Cyber Pearl Information Technology Park Private Limited
Hyderabad Infratech Private Limited

Avance Atlas Infratech Private Limited

Deccan Real Ventures Private Limited

Avance Technohub Private Limited

LOMA Co-Developers 1 Private Limited

Chengalpattu Logistics Parks Private Ltd

Kotilingam Koppu, Company secretary

Nagabhushanam Gauri Shankar, Director

Sanjeev Dasgupta, Director

Ying Soon Cheah, Director

Venkata Madana Gopal Divvela , Director

Srilatha Cherukuri, Director

Rohith Bhandary, Director

Party

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Kotilingam Koppu

Remuneration to Key management personnel 7.88 6.78
CapitaLand Services (India) Private Limited (formerly known as Ascendas Services (India) Private
Limited)

Lease Rental Income 6.25 5.93

Reimbursement of expenses (recovered) 131 1.46

Property Management, General Management, Lease Management Expenses 300.81 153.50

Reimbursement of expenses 9.69 2.26
CapitaLand Hope Foundation (India) (formerly known as Ascendas Gives Foundation)

Donation Paid 13.30 11.71
Ascendas Property Fund (FDI) Pte Ltd

Interest expense on debentures 271.59 832.15

Borrowings received/ (repaid) (2,883.00) 250.00
Ascendas Property Fund (India) Pte Ltd

Interest expense on debentures 710.06 458,02

Borrowings received/ (repaid) 2,614.34
Information Technology Park Limited

Interest expense on inter corporate deposits - 32.81
Ascendas IT Park (Chennai) Limited

Interest expense on debentures 283.83 303.90
Cyber Pearl Information Technology Park Pvt Ltd

Reimbursement of expenses (recovered) - 0.26
Hyderabad Infratech Private Limited

Reimbursement of expenses (recovered) 0.02 0.01
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(ii)

Avance-Atlas Infratech Private Limited
Reimbursement of expenses (recovered)
Reimbursement of expenses

Deccan Real Ventures Private Limited
Reimbursement of expenses

Avance Technohub Private Limited
Interest income on investments
Reimbursement of expenses

LOMA Co-Developers 1 Private Limited
Interest income on investments

Chengalpattu Logistics Parks Pvt Ltd
Interest income on investments

Outstanding balances as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023:
Receivables

Trade Receivables
CapitaLand Services (India) Private Limited (formerly known as Ascendas Services (India) Private

Payables

Trade Payables

Capitaland Singapore (BP&C) Pte. Ltd

Ascendas Services Pte Ltd

CapitalLand Services (India) Private Limited (formerly known as Ascendas Services (India) Private
Limited)

Capitaland Property Fund Trustee Pte Limited (previously known as Ascendas Property Fund Trustee
Pte Limited)

Payable to Capital Creditors
CapitaLand Services (India) Private Limited (formerly known as Ascendas Services (India) Private
Limited)

Borrowings

Ascendas Property Fund (FDI) Pte Ltd
Ascendas Property Fund (India) Pte Ltd
Ascendas [T Park (Chennai) Limited

Interest accrued but not due on Borrowings
Ascendas Property Fund (FDI) Pte Ltd
Ascendas Property Fund (India) Pte Ltd

0.00
0.00

0.66

(92.40)

(1.91)

(3,300.00)
(6,452.34)
(2,001.62)

(346.71)
(2,261.75)

0.01

0.01

34.69
0.01

4231

1.08

(0.31)
(1.31)
(43.74)

(0.01)

(6,183.00)
(3,838.00)
(2,004.37)

(2,607.04)
(1,634.36)
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35 Fair value measurements

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories is as follows:

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Patticilas At Cost Fair value At Amortised At Cost Fair value At Amortised
through Cost through Cost
profit or loss profit or loss

Financial assets

[nvestments - - 2,253.20 - - 2,787.84
Trade receivables - - 97.11 - - 24.29
Cash and cash equivalents - - 274,45 - - 1,605.65
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - - - - - -
Loans - - 3,117.00 - - 3,022.00
Other financials assets - - 1,940.83 - - 2,467.57
Total - - 7,682.59 - - 9,907.35
Financial liabilities

Borrowings - - 11,753.96 - - 12,025.37
Trade payables - - 216.18 - - 208.65
Other financial liabilities - - 4,356.03 - - 5,910.97
Total - - 16,326.17 - - 18,144.99

36 Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value

amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Meastred at cost/ amortised cost
Investments 2,253.20 - - 2,253.20 2,787.84 - - 2,787.84
Trade receivables 97.11 - - 97.11 24,29 - - 24,29
Cash and cash equivalents 274.45 - - 274.45 1,605.65 - - 1,605.65
Loans 3,117.00 - - 3,117.00 3,022.00 - - 3,022.00
Other financials assets 1,940.83 - - 1,940.83 2,467.57 - - 2,467.57
Total 7,682.59 - - 7,682.59 9,907.35 - - 9,907.35
Assets for which fair value are disclosed
[nvestment properties 11,776.31 - - 39,798.42 11,638.19 - - 35,962.00
Total 11,776.31 - - 39,798.42 11,638.19 - - 35,962.00
Financial liabilities
Meastred at amortised cost
Borrowings 11,753.96 - - 11,753.96 12,025.37 - - 12,025.37
Trade pavables 216.18 - - 216.18 208.65 - - 208.65
Other financial liabilities 4,356.03 - - 4,356.03 5,910.97 - - 5,910.97
Total 16,326.17 - - 16,326.17 18,145.00 - - 18,144.99

Notes:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within level I that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

There have been no transfers between the levels during the period.

The carrving amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, trade payables and other current financial liabilities
are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

The fair values for investments, other non-current financial assets and other non-current financial liabilities, were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current
lending rate.

They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risk.

The fair values of non-current borrowings are based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate.

They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs, including own credit risk.

For fair valuation methodology of investment property, refer note 4.
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Capital management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and reserves and surplus attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the
Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The entity manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the entity may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The entity monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total
capital plus net debt. The entity’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio minimal. The entity includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash
equivalents and bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued operations.

As at March 31, As at March 31, 2023
2024
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 11,753.96 12,025.37
Trade payables 216.18 208.65
Other payables 4,356.03 5,910.97
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (274.45) (1,605.65)
Net Debts A 16,051.72 16,539.34
Equity B 5,621.89 4,674.36
Total C=A+B 21,673.61 21,213.70
Gearing ratio A/C 74% 78%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the entity’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings
that define capital structure requirements. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period,

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

Other Statutory Information

(i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property.

(ii) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries,

(vi) No funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

(vii) The Company has noted no transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(viii) The Company is not a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender.

Ratio Analysis and its elements

Ratio Numerator Denominator 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 % change Remarks
Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities 0.79 114 -31% Variance due to
redemption of
Investments and
increased cash balance.
Debt equity ratio Total debt (Note 2 Total equity (equity 255 348 -27% Variance due to early
below) share capital + other redemption of NCD
equity)
Debt Service Coverage ratio Profit before finance  Finance cost + Current 0.82 1.19 -31% Variance due to Rs 2000
cost, lax expense Borrowings million NCD repayment
classified into  current
borrowing
Return on equity ratio Net Profits after taxes Shareholder’s Equity 0.89 0.44 103% Variance due to higher
(Including OCI) Net profit on account of
new Building operations
Trade Receivables Turnover ratio Revenue from Average trade 50.66 103.22 -51% Variance due to higher
operations Receivables operational income
Trade Payables Turnover ratio Other expenses Average Trade 322 219 47% Variance due to increase
Payables in payables of marketing
fee and property tax.
Net Capital Turnover ratio Revenue from Working capital = 223 247 -190% Variance due to positive
operations Current assets - working capital and
Current liabilities increase in revenue from
operations.
Net Profit ratio Net Profit Revenue from 0.31 0.21 48% Variance due to other
operations income and exceptional
income
Return on Capital Employed Profit before finance  Capital Employed = 0.14 0.11 27% Variance is on account of

cost and tax expense

Tangible Net Worth +
Total Debt + Deferred
Tax liability

increase in profit for the
year.

Notes:

1. The Company has not disclosed inventory turnover ratio since the Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories.
2. Total Debt = (Non current borrowings + current borrowings + interest accrued on borrowings)

o
CHARTERED 2
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Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('MSMED Act, 2006")

As at March 31, As at March 31, 2023

Particulars 2024

The principal amount and the interest due Hiereon remaining wnpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 2.75 12.95
Interest due on above - -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but

beyond the appointed day during the vear) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act

2006. - 0.00
The amount of interest accrued and remaining wnpaid at the end of each accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when

the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a

deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006.

a) The Companies (Accounts) Amendments Rules 2022 mandate maintenance of backup of company's books of accounts and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode on servers
physically located in India on a daily basis with effect from August 11, 2022. The management evaluated several options during the financial year 2022-23 considering other important aspects such as
mitigation of data and cvber security risks this had taken longer time than expected. The management has implemented the backup in India and the same has been operational from August 11, 2023.

b) The Company has used an accounting software operated by a third-party software service provider for maintaining its books of account for the year ended March 31, 2024, which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility except that an Independent Service Auditor's System and Organization Controls report covering the audit trail requirement is not available.

The Company has adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting which have been operating effectively. The Company is in the process of migrating to a new software through which
the Company expects to comply with the requirements of audit trail,

According to sub-rule 7 of rule 18 of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, a company to which requirement of Debenture Redemption Reserve applies, shall on or before the 30th day of
April in each year, in respect of debentures issued by such a company, invest or deposit, as the case may be, a sum which shall not be less than fifteen percent., of the amount of its debentures
maturing during the vear ending on the 31st day of March of the next year in any one or more methods of investments or deposits.

Adhering to the above provisions, the Company has deposited an amount of Rs 300 million (i.e 15% of Rs 2000 million of NCD which is to be redeemed and repaid to Ascendas [T(park) Chennai
Limited on February 13, 2025) with a scheduled bank on April 29, 2024.

The current liabilities of the Company exceed its current assets by Rs. 1,381.84 Million as at March 31, 2024. During the yvear, the Company has generated cash from operations and has remained
profitable. Subsequent to the year end, the Company has obtained sanctions for Rupee Term loan from Axis Bank up to Rs 12,940 million (including Capex Letter of credit of Rs 3,000 million) and has
utilized Rs 600 million out of the said facility as on date. Considering this the management is confident that it will be able to meet its obligations for the next one vear as and when they fall due and
accordingly considers it appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The figures of the previous vear have been reclassified /regrouped for better presentation in the financial statements and to confirm to current vears classification/disclosures.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
VITP Private Limited

' M7 X@bp

|

Nagabhushanam Gauri Shankar Sanjeev Dasgupta Kotilingam Koppu
Director Director Company Secretary

DIN : 08221638 DIN: 00090701 Membership no: (A-17903)
Place: Bengaluru Place: Singapore Place: Hyderabad

Date: May 28, 2024 Date: May 28, 2024 Date: May 28, 2024
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Name of the Company . VITP Private Limited
Registered Office . Capella Block, 5" Floor, Plot No. 17, Software Units

Layout, Madhapur, Hyderabad — 500081.

Name of the Member(s)
Registered Address
Email-id

Folio No.

| / We, being the member(s) of shares/debentures of the above-mentioned
company, hereby appoint:

1. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature: , or failing him/her

2. Name:
Address:
E-mail 1d:
Signature: , or failing him/her

3. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature:

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf for or against
any resolution at the 27" Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Wednesday,
25 September 2024 at 3:00 p.m.IST at the registered office of Company at Capella Block, 5%
Floor, Plot No. 17, Software Units Layout, Madhapur, Hyderabad — 500081.

Ordinary Business:
Item No. 1 — Adoption of Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 March
2024, the Auditors’ Report and Directors Report.

Special Business:

Item No.2 - Regularization of appointment of Mr. Sumit Gera as Director.
Item No.3 - Regularization of appointment of Mr. Ananth Vasanth Nayak as Director

Signed this___day of , 2024

_ Affix
Signature of Shareholder : Revenue

Stamp

Signature of Proxy Holder(s)
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